AGENDA

Town of Hooksett Town Council
Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 6:00 PM

A meeting of the Town Council will be held Wednesday, April 14, 2021 in the Hooksett Municipal Building
commencing at 6:00 PM.

Page
CALL TO ORDER
PROOF OF POSTING
ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
AGENDA OVERVIEW
PUBLIC HEARINGS

6.1. Public Hearing - Refunding Resolution and Certificate for the 2019 Rte. 3A 5-11
Infrastructure Debt (see item 15.5 for additional information)

Staff Report - SR-21-048 - Pdf
7. SPECIAL RECOGNITION

7.1. Hooksett Police Department - a) New Police Patrol Officer Swearing-in
Ceremony and b) Annual Award Ceremony - Part Il

© g > w NPk

7.2. Hooksett Fire-Rescue Department - a) New Fire Chief Steven Colburn
Swearing-in Ceremony and b) Award Ceremony - Part |

7.3. Hooksett Municipal Employee - New Hire

8. PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES
9. SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

9.1. Cindy Robertson, Chair of Conservation Commission- Hooksett Riverwalk Trail 13
Phase Il Bid Acceptance, Student Conservation Association Contract, NH
Recreational Trail Program Grant Contract and a Memorandum of
Understanding with the School District (see items 15.1, 15.2, 15.3 & 15.4 for
additional information)

Staff Report - SR-21-052 - Pdf
10. CONSENT AGENDA

10.1. Motion to accept the donation of a black aluminum pole valued at 15
approximately $50.00 from Blue Ribbon Company, of Hooksett, NH, to the
Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:95-e!ll.

Staff Report - SR-21-039 - Pdf

10.2. Motion to accept $100.00 donation from Colin & Chris Egan in memory of 17-18
George Moul to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Dept
Staff Report - SR-21-038 - Pdf

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Page 1 of 189



11.
12.

13.
14.

15.

10.3.

Motion to accept $100.00 donation from the Board of Commissioners for the
Central Hooksett Water Precinct in memory of Mr. Bill McDonald to the Town
of Hooksett for the Fire-Rescue Department/Ambulance service.

Staff Report - SR-21-044 - Pdf

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

12.1.

Nominations and Appointments - April 2021
Staff Report - SR-21-041 - Pdf

BRIEF RECESS
OLD BUSINESS

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

Lilac Bridge Memorial Landscaping — Approve of award of Landscaping
Contract to Blue Ribbon Property Improvements for an amount to be
determined and to Fund the Project with Public Recreation Facilities Impact
Fee funds (Tabled at March 24th Meeting).

Staff Report - SR-21-042 - Pdf

Updated Town of Hooksett, NH COVID-19 Travel Policy - Governor of NH
extension through April 16, 2021

Staff Report - SR-21-046 - Pdf

Updated Town Council Rules of Procedures - Section #13 Procedure for Town
Administrator Annual Evaluation

Staff Report - SR-21-045 - Pdf

NEW BUSINESS

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

15.6.

15.7.

15.8.

Hooksett Riverwalk Trail Phase Il Bid Award

Staff Report - SR-21-056 - Pdf

Approval of Sole Source Agreement with the Student Conservation Association
(SCA)

Staff Report - SR-21-053 - Pdf

NH Recreational Trail Program Grant Contract

Staff Report - SR-21-054 - Pdf

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for School District Property included in
the Head's Pond Stewardship Plan

Staff Report - SR-21-055 - Pdf

Refunding Resolution and Certificate for the 2019 Rte. 3A Infrastructure Debt
Staff Report - SR-21-049 - Pdf

Town Vehicles and Use of Personal Vehicles Policy

Staff Report - SR-21-037 - Pdf

Pawnbroker and Secondhand Dealers Ordinance 2014-1 & Application -
Proposed Amendments

Staff Report - SR-21-050 - Pdf

Motion to approve the purchase of a 2021 Ford Transit Van, emergency
equipment, graphics installation and undercoating treatment for a total not to

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

19-20

21-27

29 -32

33 -38

39 - 40

41 - 58

59 - 68

69 -73

75-77

79

81-84

85 -100

101-111

Page 2 of 189



16.

17.
18.
19.
20.

exceed $41,522.50 to be spent from the Police Detail Special Revenue Fund.
Staff Report - SR-21-029 - Pdf

15.9. Purchase of New CDL Plow Truck 113- 116
Staff Report - SR-21-036 - Pdf

15.10. Recycling & Transfer Front End Loader Purchase 117 -120
Staff Report - SR-21-035 - Pdf

15.11. Purchase of Chipper 121-126
Staff Report - SR-21-043 - Pdf

15.12. 2021 Paving 127 - 168
Staff Report - SR-21-051 - Pdf

15.13. Volunteer Appreciation Dinner 169 - 170

Staff Report - SR-21-040 - Pdf
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

16.1. Public: 03/24/2021 171 -189
TC Minutes 03242021

16.2. Non-Public: 03/24/2021

SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

PUBLIC INPUT

NON-PUBLIC SESSION NH RSA 91-A:3 i
ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC INPUT

1. Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council
Meeting. Time will be divided equally among those wishing to speak,
however,no person will be allowed to speak for more than 5 minutes.

2. No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any
meeting.Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal
or derogatory about any other person.

3. Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must
be addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town
Administrator, will determine if the question can be answered at that time.
Questions cannot be directed to an individual Councilor and must not be
personal in nature. Issues raised during Public Input, which cannot be resolved
or answered at that time, or which require additional discussion or research,
will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible for researching
and responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair
reserves the right to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to
deliberation.

4. Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a
subsequent meeting.

5. No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the
Chair. Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted
during Public Input.

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Page 3 of 189



Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Page 4 of 189



Agenda Item #6.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Public Hearing - Refunding Resolution and Certificate for the 2019 Rte. 3A
Infrastructure Debt

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department: Finance
Staff Contact: Christine Soucie, Finance Director

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Upon the request of the Tax Increment Financing(TIF) Advisory Committee, | was asked to look into
refinancing the 2019 approved note for $2.5 million for the Rte. 3A Infrastructure. The current note
which is paid entirely from the TIF district is with TD Bank and the interest rate is 2.55%. After
researching all financing options, the NH Bond Bank was the only option available to the Town. The
NH Bond Bank anticipated a rate of 1.05% at their May sale. This rate is subject to change due to
market conditions.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Estimated saving is $162,000 over eight years. This saving then can be used to do other necessary
upgrades in the district.

RECOMMENDATION:

Open Public Hearing

Christine Soucie will provide overview.
Close Public hearing and see New Business

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
See recommendation under New Business (Concur)

ATTACHMENTS:

Public Hearing Notice Rte 3A refunding
Town of Hooksett - Refunding Resolution and Certificate (4760930 1)

Page 5 of 189



Agenda Item #6.1.

TOWN OF HOOKSETT
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

Town of Hooksett Town Council will be holding a public hearing in accordance with RSA 33:3-d
on Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 6:00 pm at the Town Hall, 35 Main Street, Hooksett, NH. The

public hearing is to discuss the refunding of the Route 3A Note for sewer and other
infrastructure improvements.

Questions should be directed to the Finance Department 603-485-2712.

Page 6 of 189



Agenda Item #6.1.

TOWN OF HOOKSETT
FY 21-01
REFUNDING RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE

We, the Town Clerk of the Town of Hooksett (herein the “Town”), certifies that
the following resolutions were duly adopted at a meeting of the Town Council of the
Town, duly noticed, called and held on , 2021 and that the same are
duly recorded in the records of the Town and that the resolutions and the actions taken
thereat have not been rescinded, abridged or modified in any way:

WHEREAS, there exists unpaid and outstanding indebtedness in the current
amount of $1,670,000 evidencing a valid obligation of the Town, lawfully issued by the
Town on December 30, 2019, for the purpose of financing infrastructure improvements
identified on Exhibit A herein, which indebtedness is more particularly described by
reference to Exhibit B hereof (the “Note”); and

WHEREAS, the Town is not in default of payment of such indebtedness, nor is
there any breach, violation or noncompliance with respect to any covenant, contract,
undertaking or representation incident to such indebtedness, or the authorization, issuance
and sale thereof; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town hereby finds that the public good and
necessity and the best interests of the Town require the issuance of a refunding obligation
by the Town, the proceeds of which shall be used to take up and refund the above
identified evidences of indebtedness;

WHEREAS, the Town has submitted an application to the New Hampshire
Municipal Bond Bank (the “Bank”) for a loan to effect a refunding of the Note, which
application is expected to be approved in due course.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

(D) Of the outstanding indebtedness, as evidenced as aforesaid, $1,670,000
thereof be refunded by the issuance of a single obligation of the Town, acting by and
through its Town Council, under the provisions of RSA 33:3-d (herein the “Refunding
Bond”).

(2)  The Refunding Bond shall:

(a)  Be fully registered as provided by law initially in the name of the
New Hampshire Municipal Bond Bank (the “Bank™), or registered assigns;

(b)  Bear interest thereon to be paid semi-annually at the rate set forth in

4760930.1

Page 7 of 189



Agenda Item #6.1.

the Loan Agreement to be executed by the Town and the Bank commencing February 15
2022;

(c)  Mature and be payable serially each year during a term not to exceed
eight (8) years, commencing August 15, 2022;

(d)  Be payable at such times and place as the registered holder thereof
may designate in writing.

(3)  The Refunding Bond shall be sold to the Bank at such rate of interest and
upon such terms as the Town, acting by and through its Town Council, has found and
determined to be in the Town's best interests.

(4)  The Refunding Bond shall not exceed the total unpaid and outstanding
indebtedness evidenced as aforesaid, interest accrued thereon through the date of sale of
the Refunding Bond, and the costs incurred by the Town in connection with the issuance
of the Refunding Bond.

(5)  The proceeds derived upon the sale of the Refunding Bond shall not be
used for any purpose other than paying or retiring such indebtedness, and paying costs
associated with the issuance of the Refunding Bond.

(6)  The Refunding Bond, when issued and delivered pursuant to law and this
resolution, shall be the valid and binding general obligation of the Town, payable
according to law and the terms and tenor thereof.

(7)  To the extent necessary to ensure the timely payment of the Refunding
Bond, annually there shall be assessed and collected in the manner provided by law until
the Refunding Bond, or any bond or bonds issued to refund or replace the same, and the
interest thereon, are fully paid, a tax, user fee, charge or assessment, sufficient to pay the
interest on such bond or bonds and such part of the principal as shall become due.

(8)  The Town Council proceeds forthwith to cause the Refunding Bond to be
executed and delivered upon the price and terms agreed upon with the Bank, and be
registered as the law provides.

(9)  The Refunding Bond to be given by the Town to the Bank at the time of
receiving the proceeds of the Loan shall be substantially in the form attached hereto, as
Exhibit C;

(10) The Town expressly incorporates into this resolution each and every term,

provision, covenant and representation set forth at length in the Non-Arbitrage and Tax
Certificate to be delivered in connection with the issuance and sale of the Refunding

4760930.1

Page 8 of 189



Agenda Item #6.1.

Bond, execution and delivery of which is hereby authorized, ratified and confirmed in all
respects, and the covenants, representations and undertakings set forth at length in the
Tax Certificate are incorporated herein by reference.

(11)  All acts and things heretofore done by the lawfully constituted officers of
the Town, and any and all acts or proceedings of the Town and of its Town Council in,
about or concerning the improvements hereinabove described and of the issuance of the
Refunding Bond or other evidence of debt in connection therewith, are hereby ratified
and confirmed.

(12)  Primmer Piper Eggleston & Cramer PC, counsel to the Town, is authorized
and empowered to take possession of the documents referred to herein for delivery to the
Bank, and to complete said documents by the inclusion of appropriate dates, amounts,
rates of interest and other ministerial changes at the direction of the legislative body of
the Town or its designated official, and to acknowledge receipt of the proceeds of the
Refunding Bond on behalf of the Municipality.

(13) The proceeds of the Refunding Bond shall be deposited to the credit of the
Town, and shall be disbursed as soon as may be practical, but in no event more than
thirty (30) days from the date of delivery of the Refunding Bond to the Bank, to redeem
and repurchase evidences of indebtedness described in Exhibit B hereof.

(14) The Town shall file promptly all disclosures and reports required under
Section 149(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Regulations
promulgated thereunder (collectively, the “Code”).

(15) The Town shall not directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any
proceeds of the Refunding Bond or any other funds of the Town, or take or omit to take
any action, so as to cause the Refunding Bond to be classified as an “arbitrage bond” or
“private activity bond” within the meaning of Sections 103, 141 and 148 of the Code.

(16) To the extent proceeds derived from the sale of the Refunding Bond will be
used to reimburse the Town for capital expenditures previously made for the
improvements financed by the proceeds of the obligation identified in Exhibit B, this
Resolution shall serve as a declaration of official intent under Section 1.150-2 of the
Treasury Regulations (or a republication of any previously made declaration of official
intent) to effect a reimbursement in an amount not to exceed the total of all previous
capital expenditures.

And we, the undersigned officers, as indicated, hereby certify that the Town
Administrator and the Town Treasurer are authorized to execute and deliver the

Refunding Bond to the Bank, together with all other instruments necessary or convenient
to effectuate the intent of this Resolution issued under and pursuant to the actions

4760930.1

Page 9 of 189



Agenda Item #6.1.

hereinabove mentioned, the same being duly registered in the office of the Town
Treasurer as prescribed by law.

And we hereby certify that we are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers of
the Town constituting the Town Council, that the Refunding Bond is issued pursuant to
said authority, that no other proceedings relating thereto have been taken, and that no
such authority or proceeding has been repealed or amended.

We represent that all information the Town has provided the Bank in connection
with the Refunding Bond, and all certifications, statements, representations and records
identified or referred to therein are true, accurate and complete to the best of our
knowledge.

We further certify that no litigation is pending or threatened affecting the validity
of the Refunding Bond nor the levy and collection of taxes, charges or assessments to pay
it, nor the works of improvement financed by the proceeds of the indebtedness identified
in Exhibit B and being refunded hereby, and that neither the corporate existence of the
Town nor the title of any of us to our respective offices is being questioned.

We further certify that all actions set forth in this resolution were proposed,
considered and approved in a public meeting duly called, noticed and held in compliance

with all applicable open meeting, public records access, public procurement, bid
solicitation, and conflict of interest statutes.

4760930.1

Page 10 of 189



Agenda Item #6.1.

Dated: , 2021

ATTEST:

Town Clerk

4760930.1

Page 11 of 189



Page 12 of 189



Agenda Item #9.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Cindy Robertson, Chair of Conservation Commission- Hooksett Riverwalk Trail
Phase Ill Bid Acceptance, Student Conservation Association Contract, NH
Recreational Trail Program Grant Contract and a Memorandum of Understanding
with the School District

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department: Community Development

Staff Contact: Leann Fuller, Community Development Clerk

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

There are four seperate items that the Conservation Commission is currently working on that require
a vote from the Town Council..

1. Hooksett Riverwalk Trail Phase Ill Bid Acceptance: Since the Warrant Article passed in March,
Stantec put out a RFP for Phase Il of the Hooksett Riverwalk Trail and has recommended a bid
award. (See New Business)

2. Student Conservation Association Contract: The SCA works on trails for the Conservation
Commission and has a contract that needs to be approved. (See New Business)

3. NH Recreational Trail Program Grant Contract: The Conservation Commission must sign a
contract with the Recreational Trail Program in order to receive the $80,000 reimbursement
grant.(See New Business)

4. Memorandum of Understanding with the School District: The Head's Pond Stewardship Plan
includes a parcel of land that the School District owns. (See New Business)

RECOMMENDATION:
Listen to Cindy Robertson review the 4 items that need Council attention.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
See New Business items.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
See recommendation under New Business (Concur)

Page 13 of 189



Page 14 of 189



Agenda Item #10.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Motion to accept the donation of a black aluminum pole valued at approximately
$50.00 from Blue Ribbon Company, of Hooksett, NH, to the Town of Hooksett for
the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:95-e:ll.

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021
Department:  Police Department
Staff Contact: Jake Robie, Captain

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Blue Ribbon Company, of Hooksett, NH offered to donate one 16’ black aluminum pole to the
Hooksett Police Department. The Donation of the pole will be used to hang the solar speed sign in
Hooksett.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
None

RECOMMENDATION:
Accept the donation.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to accept the donation of a black aluminum pole valued at approximately $50.00 from Blue
Ribbon Company, of Hooksett, NH, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per
RSA 31:95-e:ll.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

Page 15 of 189



Page 16 of 189



Agenda Item #10.2.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Motion to accept $100.00 donation from Colin & Chris Egan in memory of George
Moul to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Dept

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department: Fire and Rescue
Staff Contact: Regina Howard, Administrative Assistant

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

On March 22, 2021 HFR received a card via USPS mail from Colin and Chris Egan enclosing a
donation for $100.00 in memory of their Uncle, George Moul. Mr Moul passed away on 3/10/21 and
was a resident in Hooksett. They recalled in their note that HFR responded multiple times to assist
their aunt and uncle and were appreciative of the kindness, care, and compassion shown to them by
our members.

RECOMMENDATION:

Accept $100.00 donation from Colin & Chris Egan in memory of George Moul to the Town of
Hooksett for the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Donation Line per RSA 31:95-b lli(b)

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to accept $100.00 donation from Colin & Chris Egan in memory of George Moul to the Town
of Hooksett for the Hooksett Fire-Rescue Donation Line per RSA 31:95-b lli(b)

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:
George Moul Donation Note 03222021

Page 17 of 189



Agenda Item #10.2.

: Christine Egan 3 F
AN 367 Lake Share Rd, BOST . .
\\\ Manchester, NH 03109-57p7 ON MA ©20

20 MAR 2021 PM 7 L

Novkadl Fire Departrent
fﬁdjf;?xiu{d/ EDEMAd;
Hovbadl, T 03106

CO3108~1i548 -
5 . i f}l“”“iui”r]|]rl”.j”“IJh-ip”rJ“'JJrlhr”l”ialii‘]

Hosbaill Fire Da/ama

WM@&MW%W ey
unels. :;wf?ﬂ Nowk, who pasded.
Mareh b, 321 Mo Dived. ot 1345 /‘ﬁ%aai
ine Metaetl, Orernthe Logt deneral Lpeskd , e

mwmemﬁ,m

Mwmm m ,aiom Kunol

dﬂuﬁfdeﬁﬁﬁUhizaéﬁuz, o)

Mueh 4 /JZ;M
&waw M

aag/;wz, dﬂa&.caan@‘tomyhlﬂ
(21

Page 18 of 189



Agenda Item #10.3.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Motion to accept $100.00 donation from the Board of Commissioners for the
Central Hooksett Water Precinct in memory of Mr. Bill McDonald to the Town of
Hooksett for the Fire-Rescue Department/Ambulance service.

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021
Department: Fire and Rescue
Staff Contact: Regina Howard, Administrative Assistant

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

On March 28, 2021 HFR received a letter via USPS mail from the Board of Commissioners for the
Central Hooksett Water Precinct enclosing a donation for $100.00 in memory of past board member
Mr. Bill McDonald who passed away at the age of 90. He served on their board for 15+ years and
voted unanimously to make this donation to HFR in his memory.

RECOMMENDATION:

Accept $100.00 donation from the Board of Commissioners for the Central Hooksett Water Precinct in
memory of Mr. Bill McDonald to the Town of Hooksett for the Fire-Rescue (Ambulance Service) per
RSA 31:95-b lli(b)

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to accept $100.00 donation from the Board of Commissioners for the Central Hooksett Water
Precinct in memory of Mr. Bill McDonald to the Town of Hooksett for the Fire-Rescue (Ambulance
Service) per RSA 31:95-b lli(b)

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:
Central Hooksett Water Donation Letter 03302021

Page 19 of 189



Agenda Item #10.3.

Central Hooksett

5 WATER PRECINCT
Remember consarving our natural

resources is always a good idea.

10 Water Works Drive « PO Box 16322 .
Hooksett, NH 03106
Phone: 603-624-0608 » Fax: 603-624-08 14
Email: central comcast.net

3-24-2021

To: Hooksett Ambulance Services
From: CHWP Board of Commissioners

Re: Donation

Dear members of the Hooksett Ambulance Service,

The Commissioners of the Central Hooksett Water Precinct have voted to make a donation in the
amount of $100.00 in memory of Mr. Bill McDonald.

Mr. McDonald served on this Board on 2 different occasions for 15+ years.
On 2-24-2021 Mr. McDonald passed away at the age of 90.
He was asset to this Board and community and will be missed.

Mrs. McDonald ask if we could make this donation in lieu of flowers in his memory. The vote was
unanimous.

We are honored to be able to make this gift to you in his memory.

Sincerely,

The Board of Commissioners
Central Hooksett Water Precinct

Page 20 of 189



Agenda Item #12.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Nominations and Appointments - April 2021
Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Nick Germain, Project Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

At the last Town Council meeting, Councilors chose to nominate Scott Evans to the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board (6/30/2024) and Peter Stoddard to the Economic Development Advisory
Committee (6/30/2022)

Staff will also report on the status of Recycling and Transfer Advisory Board membership with regards
to Alternates and remaining slots.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
N/A

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
Appoint Mr. Stoddard and Mr. Evans. Consider any other applications that come before council.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

"I motion to appoint Scott Evans to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board to a term expiring
6/30/2024"

"l motion to appoint Peter Stoddard to the Economic Development Advisory Committee to a term
expiring 6/30/2022"

ATTACHMENTS:
Nominations and Appointments April 2021

Page 21 of 189



Available Appointed Town Positions

Entity

Heritage Commission

Bicentennial Committee

Economic Development
Advisory Commities

Town Hall Preservation
Commitiee

Tax Increment Financing
Advizory Board

Planning Board

Parks and Recreation
Adviosry Board

Recycling and Transfer
Advisory Board

Zoning Board of Adjustment

Assigned

Councilor

James Sulivan

James Sullivan

James Sulivan

Jamas Sullivan

David Boutin

David Boutin

Alex Walczyk

Clark Karolan

Roger Duhaime

Available Positions

(x1) Commissioner

(x2) Alternate

(TED) Member

1 Business Member

(x3) Committea Member

x1 Member (Property Owner
Within Distrct)

*1 Member

2 Member

1 ARernate

Expiration

6/30/2023
63072023

6/30/2023

63072022

6/30/2021

6/30/2022

6/30/2024

6/30/2023

6/30/2021

Contact Town
Staff

Administration

Administration

Admanistration

Community
Development

Admanistration

Community
Development

Community
Development

Pubkic Works

Public Works

Community
Devebopment

Agenda Item #12.1.

Page 22 of 189



Agenda Item #12.1.

Town of Hooksett

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTED TOWN BOARD POSITION
Date Submittes: /R //¢./ 22

Name: R’:ﬁe.ﬁ S—fpd?farvqf Phone: Co3- A35-6394%
Address: _ [ 7/ 7 u'@ﬁﬂ-fl‘ﬂ A ~ppcheston N H 0370F
Email Address: Pe}as@_&iv lanrel Seyiices ¢

Signature: W__—/

R R R R AR AR AR AR AR RN ERERE FREREXTTRETERE

Return completed form to: Town of Hooksett, 35 Main Street, Hooksett NH 03106,

Attn: Administration Department or email to NGermain@hooksett.org

R bl A R AR AR AR R R AR AR AR AT R TR AR Y

| am willing to serve on the following Town Boards/Committees/Commissions. | understand if
appointed, | am required to attend the regular meetings.

ARD! MMISSION MMI
Role Preference
Alternate, Regular, or None?

Conservation Commission

fEDcnumic Development Advisory Committee

Heritage Commission

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board

___ Planning Board

Recycling & Transfer Advisory Committee

Town Hall Preservation Committee

Zoning Board of Adjustment

____ Other {Please specify.)

Page 23 of 189



Agenda Item #12.1.

2

How long have vou been a resident of Hooksett?
T am a residet of mimelesiia,

Hovksst

but O~r Abusiess In

Why are you seeking this position?

Looki= +o oet Jovpveel 1 P Commur ity

Do you have any specific goals or objectives?

Compmer Ha-« g‘”l-"f'c&

Please list special skills, talents or experience pertinent to the position sought:
Bisiiess oerpor — L e Surves "'".‘:l C 2 Py - £ ydens /o kw-..-fex._’a
o4 lawd development.

Please list any potential conflicts of interest you may have if appointed for a board or commission:

%Cm{-‘h}_‘!‘ wivld be /€ o) Com P oy LAS Conbacted 2 Lond Svﬂﬂd.;af
Sevrvices Lo A business Mot whnd Seaking Jrpet From +i EDAC s Lwhoeh
Cuye. F twuid vecwse rr95e/{

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or educational experience you would like to have considered:

Please list any current/prior Town board membership and the dates of service:

N

Page 24 of 189



Agenda Item #12.1.

Town of Hooksett

35 Main Street
Hooksett, NH 03106

FRAUD POLICY

Recognition & Awareness Form

Acknowledgement:
My signature signifies that I have read the Town of Hooksett’s Fraud Policy and that |

understand my responsibilities related to the prevention, detection and reporting of
suspected misconduet and dishonesty.

Fd

Print Name: PC'J" il S‘{'r-'t[c&.&- L/‘c(

Date Signed: L Z/V/'Zﬁ

Department Head Signature:

Page 5

Page 25 of 189



Agenda Item #12.1.

Town of Hooksett

APPLICATION FOR VOLUNTEER FOSITION

Date Submitted: j/iu/at

Name: ™ H 2 25 Phone: @03 SR0 ;?0&

Address: (,;:(7 /)’?41'/[)"")-;}

Email Address: (;[//?’/{,K (C;) /U/%QG, C-C"”?

AKARAAARAAARRAAR AN RARF R RAR AR R A AAR KR AR ERAARAAAA R AR awk kbbb kb bk d A rd v d kb ww kA A w kA AR c e h At mw bl ad

Return campleted form to: Town of Hooksett, 356 Main Street, Hooksett NH 03106, Altn:

Nicho.as P Germain, Project Coord nator or emai to ngermain@hooksett.org.

Why are you seeking Lhis position? -
ﬂ/ﬁ'/ J/CQ.C, Ot

Do you have any specific goals or objectives?

Days & Time Availakle;

SIGNED:

Page 26 of 189



Town of Hooksett
35 Main Street
Hooksett, NH 03106

FRAUD POLICY
Recognition & Awareness Form

Acknowledgement:

My signature signifies that [ have rcad the Town of Hookseit's Fraud Policy and that 1
understand my responsibilities_related to the prevention, detcetion and reporting of
suspected misconduct and dishonesty. -~

yd

Sipnaiure:
£
Print Name: Lu]} KC LAA”C ——

Date Signed; 3 / / é)/ o

Department Head Signature:

Page 5

Agenda Item #12.1.

Page 27 of 189



Page 28 of 189



Agenda ltem #14.1.

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Lilac Bridge Memorial Landscaping — Approve of award of Landscaping Contract
to Blue Ribbon Property Improvements for an amount to be determined and to
Fund the Project with Public Recreation Facilities Impact Fee funds (Tabled at
March 24th Meeting).

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021
Department: Community Development
Staff Contact: Bruce Thomas, Town Engineer

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Last year the memorial for the Lilac Bridge was constructed. The Memorial was a requirement of the
pedestrian bridge project completed several years ago. Also required is to install flowers and lilacs at
the site. | developed a Request for Quotes and sent the request to five local landscaping companies.
The following is attached:

e Updated Landscaping plan included with RFQ
e Spreadsheet with known pricing and pricing to be determined. A completed spreadsheet will be
provided prior to the meeting.
| contacted the following companies and requested that they provide me with a quote for landscaping of
the area surrounding the Lilac Bridge Memorial:

Alliance Landscaping

Blue Ribbon Property Improvements
Faulkner's Landscaping

Grapevine Landscaping

Martin’s Landscaping & Construction

Two quotes were received:
e Alliance Landscaping $32,906
e Blue Ribbon Property Improvements $20,007

The company who provided the lowest quote was Blue Ribbon Property Improvements. The Town
Administrative Code requires that projects over $15,000 be competitively bid, however, | requested that the
quotes provided be broken out by item and | believe that the intent of the procurement code will be satisfied by
awarding the project based on the individual item prices.. Attached is a table showing those items and the
quotes provided. Note however, at the previous Town Council meeting the request to add irrigation, and
subsequent requests to add parking and bollards will increase the contract such that it is over the $15,000
threshold where bids are required.

Blue Ribbon Landscaping provided the lowest overall quote, but is willing to install the lilacs, the flowers, flower
beds, and the stone dust walkway for $7,250, which is well under the $15,000 threshold required to

Page 29 of 189



Agenda ltem #14.1.

obtain formal bids. The curb installation will be eliminated from the project. The loam and seed
installation will be done by the Department of Public works within their budget. Since the tabled
Town Council meeting | have requested quotes for additional pavement that would add three
parallel parking spaces along Veteran’s Drive, a quote for irrigation, and a quote for a
removable bollard at the entrance path.

Based on the above, | intend to make a recommendation that the Town waives the requirement
to bid the project (since the cost will be over $15,000) and accept the quotes provided by the
Blue Ribbon Properties company and hire them to do the selected work the amount of that
work (assuming the costs are deemed reasonable). | will further recommend that the project
funding be provided from the Public Recreation Facilities Impact Fee account also known as the
“Parks Impact Fees” funds. As of January 31, 2021, the balance in this account was $123,376.29.
The balance after this project is completed will be $116,126.29. The public works director has
approved of this funding source.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The agreed upon award price will be funded from the Public Recreation Facilities Impact Fees
account.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
None.

RECOMMENDATION:
To be determined prior to and presented at the Town Council meeting.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
To be determined prior to and presented at the Town Council meeting.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:
Lilac Bridge Memorial Landscape Spreadsheet
Landscape Plan 11 x 17 REVISED w-Parking

Page 30 of 189



Agenda ltem #14.1.

L[SFA [SHE RV [T My 6 TES JEERNTE]

(LT RPN W TR R T

. L SUCTR] AN [ RN 0 FUIAT [PUsITT 0T

’ - UIII, RIS UCILPRIT] [ 660
(a2ud nur oapusnnd e ) e e DE UG

) 1 bY STOY,
[E{9FAY LYY JECLE FIipasg pud | [

1ar% It Jeces JEGFT OFES Ne g WSS L ILE|n U] LI TaNE ULty [05.00)
(13 . g neEg WE N WD UL T&Y JEE WS S 2T | DT R TR
ok Tug, HR S AT 12t 2% . o [N (I 7% HIEJEISL] R =000 R[] 0180

€ CULLSILLY)
NALLINLIOMT
NOAIT L TE

[CRRTER T 8Tl
TTAVIUINY ']
INVET (Y

IS V)
NHLLEAMA
O 0

DALEYVISTINY|
AINKTTIV

EETERITi L]
SALLS AT
NOCHTHIH L8

TINYIT IV

1 LHA MO
NOSIST ST

DALY ORINYI
ONVT Y

Page 31 of 189



68T JO z€ abed

LILAC BRIDGE MONUMENT
LANDSCAPING PLAN - 2021

40 X 12' STONE
DUST PAD

| EXISTING BENCHES
AND HISTORICAL PLAQUE

"..i.-_u—_"

LOAM & SEED
AREA SHOWN
| AREA = 8,800 SF

4' WIDE STONE DUST

WALKWAY / .’

CONSTRUCT 110 LF OF
STRAIGHT GRANITE CURB
(NHDOT 609.01)

' PROPOSED LILAC TREE
| STONE DUST PATH
| LANDSCAPE AREA

LOAM & SEED
AREA SHOWN
AREA =2780 SF

INSTALL IRRIGATION SYSTEM
(DRAWING FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES)

"T'vT# Wa) epuaby



Agenda ltem #14.2.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Updated Town of Hooksett, NH COVID-19 Travel Policy - Governor of NH
extension through April 16, 2021

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Donna Fitzpatrick, Human Resource Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Town Council, at their meeting of March 24, 2021, updated the Town of Hooksett, NH COVID-19 Travel Policy based
on the March 16, 2021 NH Division of Public Health Services (NHDPHS) revision.

On March 26, 2021 Governor Sununu issued Emergency Order #88 (see attached) to extend the update the Council
made at their last meeting from March 26, 2021 to April 16, 2021. Council approval is needed for the April extension (see
updated policy recommendation attached).

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
N/A

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
Extension to Police effective date from March 26, 2021 to April 16, 2021.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve extension of policy through April 16, 2021 and authorize Town Administrator Garron to make any future changes
to this policy, so that Administration may get these frequently changing COVID-19 policies out to employees in a timely
manner.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

1) Motion to approve the updated Town of Hooksett COVID-19 Travel Policy as amended to extend
the policy through April 16, 2021 AND

2) Motion to authorize Town Administrator Garron to make future amendments to the Town of
Hooksett COVID-19 Travel Policy based on CDC and/or NH DPHS revisions to its current COVID-19
travel guidelines or the Governor of NH issues or updates a COVID-19 Emergency Order.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:

Concur, Approvals to the Travel Policy have been in concert with changes made at the State and
Federal level. If future changes are made accordingly, staff is requesting approval of the Council to
allow the Town Administration to move forward with the amendments.

ATTACHMENTS:
TOH COVID TRAVEL POLICY - AMEND 04142021

Page 33 of 189



Agenda Item #14.2.

emergency-order-88

Page 34 of 189



Agenda Item #14.2.

Town of Hooksett, NH
COVID-19 Travel Policy
Effective March 16, 2021

The Town of Hooksett continues to closely monitor guidance and information provided by the State of
New Hampshire and the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) relative to Novel Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-
19) and take the appropriate steps to protect the health and safety of our employees. In response to the
Governor's COVID-19 Emergency Order #82 #88 of January-15,202% March 26, 2021, updated COVID-
19 travel guidelines published by the NH DHHS Division of Public Health Services of March 16, 2021 (see
also NHDPHS & CDC), the Town will take the following course of action, effective March 16, 2021.

The Town of Hooksett, NH strongly discourages high-risk travel. High-risk travel is defined as
international travel (including to and from Canada except for essential Canadian travel), and
cruise ship travel.

Any employee who chooses to do high-risk travel is required to do the following for each instance of
travel:

1. Notify your supervisor as soon as possible of your plans to travel.

2. Self-quarantine for 10 days following the last date of high-risk travel. At the end of this self-
guarantine, if asymptomatic, the employee may return-to-work.

3. The 10-day self-quarantine may be reduced by getting a COVID-19 test on day 6-7 of the self-
quarantine. The test must be a molecular test (e.g., PCR-based test), antigen tests (rapid tests)
are not accepted for this purpose. Once test results come back negative, the employee is
asymptomatic, the employee is and will self-observe for symptoms of COVID-19 and strictly
adhere to COVID-19 mitigation measures, then he/she may return-to-work.

4. Notify your employer at anytime upon returning-to-work from a high-risk travel should you have
symptoms of COVID-19.

During the 10-day quarantine period, or the reduced quarantined period, employees must use available
accrued time or emergency paid sick leave or go without pay if neither accrued time nor emergency paid
sick leave are available.

This policy will remain in effect through Mareh-26,2021 April 16, 2021 or until such time as the CDC
and/or NH DPHS revises its current COVID-19 travel guidelines or the Governor of NH issues or updates
a COVID-19 Emergency Order.

EXCEPTION TO COVID-19 TRAVEL POLICY |

The following employees do NOT need to follow steps 1-4 of the above high-risk travel policy:

a) A person who is 14 days beyond the Johnson & Johnson dose or second dose (Pfizer or Moderna) of
their COVID-19 vaccine (i.e., 14 days after full vaccination)

b) A person who is within 90 days of a prior SARS-CoV-2 infection diagnosed by PCR or antigen testing

Revised by Town Council on 04/14/2021

Page 35 of 189



Agenda Item #14.2.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU
Governor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
BY HIS EXCELLENCY
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU, GOVERNOR

Emergency Order #88 pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive
Orders, 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, 2020-14, 2020-15, 2020-16, 2020-17,
2020-18, 2020-20, 2020-21, 2020-23, 2020-24, 2020-25, 2021-01, 2021-02, 2021-04 and 2021-
05

An order regarding travel guidance and extending Emergency Order #52

WHEREAS, on Friday, March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a National
Emergency Concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Outbreak; and

WHEREAS, on Friday, March 13, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order 2020-04, an
order declaring a state of emergency due to the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19); and

WHEREAS, the Governor issued Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, 2020-
14, 2020-15, 2020-16, 2020-17, 2020-18, 2020-20, 2020-21, 2020-23, 2020-24, 2020-25, 2021-
01, 2021-02, 2021-04 and 2021-05 extending the State of Emergency declared in Executive
Order 2020-04; and

WHEREAS, on May 1, 2020, the Governor issued Emergency Order #40, an order extending
and modifying Emergency Order #17 (Closure of non-essential businesses and requiring Granite
Staters to stay home), which contained the Stay At Home 2.0 plan that had been unanimously
approved by the Governor’s Economic Re-Opening Task Force and approved by the Department
of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health; and

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2020, the Governor issued Emergency Order #52, an order issuing
public health guidance for business operations and advising Granite Staters that they are safer at
home, which contained the Safer at Home plan enabling the State to continue to take steps to
gradually re-open New Hampshire's economy in multiple phases; and

WHEREAS, on July 31, 2020, the Governor issued Emergency Order #61, an order extending
Emergency Order #52; and

WHEREAS, on August 31, 2020, the Governor issued Emergency Order #66, an order
extending Emergency Order #52; and
107 North Main Street, State House - Rm 208, Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Telephone (603) 271-2121 * FAX (603) 271-7640

Website: hitpz//www.governor.nh.gov/ * Email: governorsununu@nh.gov
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2064

Page 36 of 189



Agenda Item #14.2.

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2020, the Governor issued Emergency Order #70, an order
extending Emergency Order #52; and

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2020, the Governor issued Emergency Order #72, an order
regarding travel guidance and extending emergency Order #52; and

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2021, the Governor issued Emergency Order # 82, an order
regarding travel guidance and extending Emergency Order #52; and

WHEREAS, the conditions necessitating Emergency Orders #40, #52, #61, #66, #70, #72, and
#82 are still present in New Hampshire and in other states; and

WHEREAS, New Hampshire State Epidemiologist Dr. Benjamin Chan has determined that
community mitigation has been and continues to be critically important; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Chan advises that relaxing community mitigation efforts risks additional
COVID-19 outbreaks; and

WHEREAS, on May 29, 2020, the U.S. Supreme Court observed that “[t]he precise question of
when restrictions on particular social activities should be lifted during the [COVID-19] pandemic
is a dynamic and fact-intensive matter subject to reasonable disagreement,” and stated that “[o]ur
Constitution principally entrusts the safety and health of the people to the politically accountable
officials of the States to guard and protect,” South Bay United Pentecostal Church, et al.,
Applicants v. Gavin Newsom, Governor of California, et al., No. 19A1044, 590 U.S. _ (2020),
at 3 (Roberts, C.J., concurring); and

WHEREAS, New Hampshire's courts have recognized that the COVID-19 pandemic justifies
the Governor’s declaration of a State of Emergency and the restrictions placed on New
Hampshire's citizens, businesses, and other organizations through the Emergency Orders. See
Binford, et. al. v. Sununu, Merrimack Cty. Super. Ct., 217-2020-CV-00152 (March 25, 2020}
(Kissinger, J.), at 7-9; Devine v. Sununu, Rockingham Cty. Super. Ct., 218-2020-CV-00602
(June 18, 2020) (Schulman, 1.); Cooper v. Sununu, Hillsborough Cty. Super. Ct., Southern Dist.,
2020-CV-00266 (July 13, 2020) (Colburn, J.), at 15; Athens v. Sununu, Cheshire Cty. Super. Ct.,
213-2020-CV-00104 (July 14, 2020) (Ruoff, 1.), at 6~7; and

WHEREAS, New Hampshire courts have recognized that the outbreak and death toll in New
Hampshire would likely be higher without the Governor’s initial order declaring a State of
Emergency, and that, given the alarming number of cases in neighboring states and the national
and international coordination required to sufficiently control the spread of the disease, COVID-
19 is a “disaster of major proportions™ that lies “beyond local control.” BAMP Track
Operations, LLC v. Sununu, Merrimack Cty. Super. Ct., 214-2020-CV-00046, at 13; and

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to affect New Hampshire residents and there is
a continued need to take significant precautions; and

WHEREAS, the outbreak of COVID-19 has confronted the State with an unprecedented public
health emergency and with financial and economic devastation resulting therefrom, which

107 North Main Street, State House - Rm 208, Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Telephone (603) 271-2121 + FAX (603) 271-7640
Website: http2fwww.governor.nh.gov/ * Email: governorsununu@nh.gov
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964

Page 37 of 189



Agenda Item #14.2.

require the State to continue to respond rapidly to ensure that necessary supplies, economic
infrastructure, and other appropriate emergency responses are provided immediately; and

WHEREAS, based on the facts and circumstances described herein, and those described in
Emergency Orders #52, #61, #66, #70, #72, and #82 the Governor has determined that it is
necessary extend Emergency Order #52 and extend the revised travel guidance issued pursuant
to Emergency Order #72.

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 18 of Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by
Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, 2020-14, 2020-15, 2020-16, 2020-17,
2020-18, 2020-20, 2020-21, 2020-23, 2020-24, 2020-25, 2021-01, 2021-02, 2021-04 and 2021-
05 it is hereby ordered, effective immediately, that:

1. In addition to the travel related provisions of the Universal Guidelines for New Hampshire
employers and employees, all New Hampshire residents and travelers/visitors to the State of
New Hampshire must continue to comply with the travel guidance documents issued by the
Division of Public Health and included on Exhibit A to Emergency Order #72.

2. Emergency Order #52, as extended by Emergency Orders #61, #66, #70, #72, and #82 issued
pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04, as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08,
2020-09, 2020-10, 2020-14, 2020-15, 2020-16, 2020-17, 2020-18, 2020-20, 2020-21, 2020-
23, 2020-24, 2020-25, 2021-01, 2021-02, 2021-04 and 2021-05 is hereby extended and shall
remain in effect until April 16, 2021,

3. The provisions of this Order shall remain in effect until April 16, 2021.

Given under my hand and seal at the Executive
Chambers in Concord, this 26th day of March, in
the year of Our Lord, two thousand and twenty-one,
and the independence of the United States of
America, two hundred and forty-five.

CRAET K e

GOVERNOR OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

107 North Main Street, State House - Rm 208, Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Telephone (803) 271-2121 « FAX (603) 271-7640
Website: http/fwww.governor.nh.gov/ * Email: governorsununu@nh.gov
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-B00-735-2964

Page 38 of 189



Agenda Item #14.3.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Updated Town Council Rules of Procedures - Section #13 Procedure for Town
Administrator Annual Evaluation

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Donna Fitzpatrick, Human Resource Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Town Council has formed a sub-committee, Councilors Karolian, Lapierre & Boutin, to conduct meetings with Town
Administrator Garron and review the current Town Administrator Annual Evaluation process (see below) with the outcome
to make recommendations for change in process and evaluation form.

13. Procedure for Town Administrator Annual Evaluation

a. Council’s first meeting in May — Council will receive Town Administrator’s self-evaluation to include status on
his/her goals with comments for period ending June 30th of the same fiscal year along with a blank evaluation
form.

b. Council’s second meeting in May = Councilors are to complete and submit the Town Administrator evaluation form via e-
mail to the Council Chair and cc: Administrative Services Coordinator (or hand deliver to same at meeting).

C. First week in June = Administrative Services Coordinator and Council Chair consolidate each Councilor’s Town
Administrator evaluation data into one report.

d. Council’s first meeting in June — Councilors to review consolidated Town Administrator evaluation report for edits.

€. Council’s second meeting in June — Councilors and Town Administrator to receive Town Administrator evaluation report in
agenda packet and review at this meeting.
f.  Council’s annual July/August Workshop meeting — New council to establish goals for new fiscal year.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
N/A

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

To be determined by Town Council sub-committee

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Updated Town Council Rules of Procedures Section #13 Procedure for Town Administrator Annual Evaluation as
presented by the Town Council sub-committee for an effective date

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to approve Updated Town Council Rules of Procedures Section #13 Procedure for Town
Administrator Annual Evaluation as presented by the Town Council sub-committee for an effective
date

Page 39 of 189



Agenda Item #14.3.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:

Concur, final proposed evaluation form was reviewed, discussed and agreed to by the sub-committee
of Councilors to move forward for Town Council approval.

Page 40 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Hooksett Riverwalk Trail Phase Ill Bid Award
Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department: = Community Development
Staff Contact: Leann Fuller, Community Development Clerk

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Stantec put out a RFP for Phase Il of the Hooksett Riverwalk Trail. This bid was contingent upon the
voters approving the Warrant Article in March. Stantec has since reviewed all the bids and went
through their references. Stantec recommends awarding the contract to Belko Landscaping in the
amount of $143,741.00.

RECOMMENDATION:
Vote to award the Hooksett Riverwalk Phase Il Trail Construction contract to Belko Landscaping.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to award the Hooksett Riverwalk Phase Il Trail Construction contract to Belko Landscaping
for the amount of $143,741.00.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:
Stantec Contract Award Recommendation

Page 41 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Q Stantec

March 31, 2021
File: 195113093

Hooksett Conservation Commission
Attn: Cindy Robertson, Chairperson
35 Main Street

Hooksetft, NH 03106

Dear Ms. Robertson:

Re:  Merrimack Riverfront Trail System Project, Phase Il Trail Construction
Contract Award Recommendation

On Friday, March 3, 2021, five (5) bids were received for the subject project. The low
bidder was Belko Landscaping, LLC with a Base Bid Amount of $143,741.00. The bid
tabulation, Belko Landscaping’s Bid, and Bid Bond are attached.

Stantec performed an evaluation of the low bidder, as part of our review we have
checked three of their references from recently completed projects of similar size and
scope and have received three favorable responses. The three completed reference
forms are attached. In addition, Belko Landscaping’s bank has provided a reference
letter (attached), indicating that the company is in good standing.

In consideration of these findings, we recommend that the Conservation Commission
award this project to Belko Landscaping, LLC for their bid amount of $143,741.00.

Aftached is a Notice of Award for signature. If acceptable, please sign and return to us.
We will forward the document to the Contractor and prepare the contract documents
for execution. If you have any questions, or require any additional information, please
contact me at our office.

Sincerely
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

roupa}

J. Daniel Tatem

Senior Associate
dan.tatem@stantec.com
Phone: (603) 669-8672
Fax: (603) 669-7636

Attachments: Bid Tabulation
Belko Landscaping, LLC Bid
Belko Landscaping, LLC Bid Bond
Reference Forms
Bank Letter
Notice of Award

c: Steve Couture, Con Com Rep.

Page 42 of 189



68T JO £F abed

g PROJECT # 195113093
g Stantec

SHEET# 1
MADE BY: DATE: # 3/5/2021
PROJECT: Merrimack Riverfront Trail Project - Phase Il CHKD BY: DATE: # 3/5/2021
SUBJECT: Bid Tabulation REV BY: DATE:
CHKD BY: DATE:
[ltem No.  [Description Unit Quantity
Belko Landscaping, LLC Solid Earth Tech., Inc. Jamco Excavators, LLC WP Davis Excavation, LLC F.L. Merrill Const., Inc.

Base Bid: Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
1 Erosion Control LS 1 $5,375.00 $5,375.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $28,450.00 $28,450.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $11,500.00  $11,500.00
2 Loam Stripping & Restoration, Access Rd LS 1 $3,485.00 $3,485.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $25,950.00 $25,950.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,900.00 $5,900.00
3 Loam Stripping, Stockpile & Removal LF 1,160 $16.00 $18,560.00 $12.50 $14,500.00 $5.52 $6,403.20 $5.00 $5,800.00 $3.00 $3,480.00
4 Abutments/Wing Walls, Gravel Approach EA 4 $1,550.00 $6,200.00 $9,500.00 $38,000.00 $15,300.00 $61,200.00 $14,900.00 $59,600.00 $11,500.00  $46,000.00
5 8' Wide, Boardwalks LF 120 $492.00 $59,040.00 $425.00 $51,000.00 $490.19 $58,822.80 $835.00  $100,200.00 $925.00 $111,000.00
6 Wood Mats, Install & Removal SF 1,440 $4.30 $6,192.00 $8.00 $11,520.00 $15.04 $21,657.60 $3.50 $5,040.00 $18.00  $25,920.00
7 8' Wide Gravel Trail LF 1,160 $15.25|  $17,690.00 $18.00 $20,880.00 $21.96 $25,473.60 $35.00 $40,600.00 $13.00 $15,080.00
8 Loam & Seed Trail Shoulders LF 1,160 $7.00 $8,120.00 $12.50 $14,500.00 $3.31 $3,839.60 $5.00 $5,800.00 $4.00 $4,640.00
9 Allowance for Soils/Concrete Testing ALLOW 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
10 Misc. Site Clean-up LS 1 $1,730.00 $1,730.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $37,500.00  $37,500.00
11 SWPPP Plan & Inspections LS 1 $1,235.00 $1,235.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $4,250.00 $4,250.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,900.00  $10,900.00
12 Ledge/Boulder Removal Cy 10 $618.00 $6,180.00 $1.00 $10.00 $1.00 $10.00 $100.00 $1,000.00 $375.00 $3,750.00
13 Mirafi 500x Fabric SY 1,290 $0.60 $774.00 $4.00 $5,160.00 $1.85 $2,386.50 $2.00 $2,580.00 $8.00) $10,320.00
14 54" High Pedestrian/Bike Rail LF 20 $208.00 $4,160.00 $100.00 $2,000.00 $166.66 $3,333.20 $380.00 $7,600.00 $250.00 $5,000.00

Total Base Total Base Total Base Total Base Bid Total Base
Bid - Items 1 Bid-ltems 1 Bid-ltems 1 - ltems 1 Bid - Items 1
Through 14: $143,741.00 Through 14:|  $190,570.00 Through 14: $249,776.50 Through 14:  $258,220.00 Through 14:  $295,990.00

T'CT+H 1121 PDOLIAB



Agenda Item #15.1.

Merrimack Riverfron Trail System Project — Phase |l Bid
Engineer: Stantec Consulting Services Inc Section 06331 Page 1 of B

SECTION 00331

BID

PART A - BID
Proposal of _ Belke Landscaping, LLC (hereinafter
calted "BtDDER"), organized and existing under the laws of the State of _ New Hampshire doing
business as _ LLC *

‘Insed "a corporation,” “a partnership " or “an :ndividual” as applicabie.

To the Hooksett Congervation Commissior (hereinafier cafled "OWNER'Y: In compliance with your
Advertisemsnt for Bids, BIDDER hereby proposes tc perform all Work for the construction of the:!
Merrimack Riverfrant Trait Systern Project — Phase (11, in sirict accordance with the Contrast Deocuments,
within the tims set forth therein, and at the prices stated beiow.

By submission: of this bid, the BIDDER certifies. and in the case of a jaint bid, each party thereto cedifias
as 1o his own organization, that this bid has been arrived at independently, withou{ consultation.
communication or agreement as to any matier relating to this bid with any other BIDDER or with any
competitor,

The BIDDER dectares that no person in the employ of the QWNER is pecuniarily interested in this
proposal or in the Gontract for the Work which he proposes to do, that he has carefully examined the
Contract and Specifications and has informed himseif fully in regard tc ali conditions partaining to the site
where the Work is to be dons and has carefully estimated the Work. He understands that the GWNER,
its agents and employees, are not to be in any manner held responsibie for the accuracy of, or bourd by,
any estimates or plans or locations of underground structures refating to the Werk, and that if any have
been given or made, they are tc be considered soiely as a base for filling cut and comparing the several
proposals,

The BIDDER proposes to furnish aff the tator, equipment and materials required for carrying aut the Work
in accordance with the accompanying Specifications and Drawings prepared by Stantec Conrsuiting
Services, inc. for the sum specified hersin, subject to additions and deductions according to the
Specifications, and in ali respects according to the terms thereof,

BIDDER hereby agrees to commence Work under this Contract on or before the date fo be specified in
the Notice to Proceed, to fully compiete the Project and obtain an executed Certificate of Final
Completion within One Hundred Twenty (120) conseculive calendar days of the Natice to Proceed.
BIDOER further agrees to pay as liquidated damages, the sum of $500.0C for each consaculive calendar
day thereafter.

The BIDDER rropases and agrees that within the rext five (5) catendar days after the day on

which Notice of the Award shali be given o him or maied 1o nim at the adaress hereinafter given, he will
sign three (3} copies of the Agreemant of the form provided in Section 00531 - Agreement, and wil
execute and defiver to the QWNER the Agreement and bonds in the sums specified, sonditioned to
faithfully furnish and co everything required of the CONTRACTOR, with a surety company authorized to
do business in New Hampshire.

The BIDDER acknowledges receipt of the following addenda;

No, 1 , dated __ 2/35 . 20_21

N2, , dated ) .20

MNo. , dated 20

MNa. , dated .20
195113083 -ebruary 2021

Page 44 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Merrimack Riverfront Trail System Project - Phase Il Bid

Ergineer: Stariec CorsJliing Sarvices jne. Section 00331 Page 2 of 8

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS i

All questions must be answered, and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. This
Staternent must be notarized. The Bidder may submit any additional information he/she

desires.

Date

1. Firm Name: Belko Landseaping, L1 O

2. Permanent Main Cffice Address and Phone Number: 242 { awrence Rd Salem, NH 03079
|

603-458-1421 !

3 When Qrganized- _2008

4. if a Corporation, where incerporated (if in more than one State, so indicate):
5. How many years have you been engaged in conlracting under your present firm name:
13
6. Contracts on Hand (not completed). Show gross value for each contract, anticipated ’

date of completion, names of Owner and Architect’Engineer;

fHayden Schofield Playstead, City of Lawrence, $734,911, 4/21
Lowell Hous:ng Authority, $37986, 06/21
Framingham Housing Authority, $78 191 06/21

.__Town of Andover $3560,935, 04/21

_ Malden Houstng Authority, $64.830, 04/21

7. Show significant contracts (recently completed), gross value for each, the month and
year completed, the names and phone numbers of Owner and Architect/Engineer, !

Lowell Housing Mercier Center, $468,360, Tim Wong 781-756-0004, 10/20
City of Newton Cold Springs Park, $41,668, Luls Demorizi §17-795-1 507, 4/20
UNH Hood House, $64,830. Paul Henry 603-862-0290. 0520
Melhmnhmsrngmmwm&.ﬁmlﬁomm 10/20
Boston Housing Authority Concrete step repair $7525 Mauri Stavenson 517-988-5385. 12/20

wrltymmmm@mo

3. Experience in work similar to this contract {give Owner's name and Architect/Engineer
associated with work). _City of Newton Coid Springs Park- Instalf stone dust walking

trail, { uis Demorizi 817-796-1507

195113003 February 2021

Page 45 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Merrimack Riverfront Trall System Project — Phase Il Bid
Eng:neer: Stantec Consulting Services inc. Section 00337 Page 3 of 8
9. General character of work performed by you: Landscape maintenance and construction

10. Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? ¥ so, where and why?
Ngo ~
11, Have you ever defauited on a contract? I 50, where and why?
No
12 Lis{ your major equipment that wil! be utilized for this contract.
{indicate if owned or leased),
Bobcat- owned i
Rolier- gwnead ——
CAT 305 - il _
13 Backgreund and experience of the principal members of your organization that will be
utihzed for this Cantract.
John Belko- 13 years of landscape maintenance and construction
14, Background and experience of supervisor you propose to represent your firm at the site
during the consiruction period of this Contract,
Jedd Canane- 3 years of fandscape construction
195113093 February 2021

Page 46 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Merrimack Riverfront Trait System Project — Phase ill Bid

Engineer: Stantec Consuiting Services Inc. Section 30321 Page 4 of B

15. Give bank and credit references (include name, address and phone #):

TD Bank- Justin Dtfo- 978-684-6602

16 Give name of Agency and Company that will provide Performance and Payment Sonds
for this Contract (including reference contract):

Notary Public:w"’f["""f? -

AA_Dority - Jeff Crawford 617-523-2835 B

TARA BURNS E

NOTARY PUBLIC

State of New Hampshire County of e e o State of New Hamhshire :
MyDCommtl;s!‘lo; 3 :i"res :

Subscribed and swom to me this _ 7 day of #7248 s L2024 ecomber 15 :

My Commission Expires: /2 /i /4 i

195113083 February 2021

Page 47 of 189



Merrimack Riverfront Trail System Project - Phase 1|

Engineer: Stante¢ Consulting Services inc.

Agenda Item #15.1.

Section 00331 Page 5 of 8

SCHEDALE OF PRICES: NOTE: This Proposal shall be fifled in by the BtDDER with the prices

written in both words and numerais and the extensions made by him/her. In case of
discrepancy between words and numerals, the amount shown in words shall govern.

BIDDER agrees to perform all the necessary jabor, fumish ali materals and do all wark
described in the Specifications and shown con the Drawings, for the following lump sum prices
and/cr unit prices:

ltorm
No.

Hem Description

Unit

Unit Price

QTY Total Price

EROS3ION CONTROL, COMPLETE {i.E,
ST SOCK, CONST. FENCE,
STOCKPILE STABILIZATION, MAINTAIN
CONET ENTRANCE, ETC.)

$ 5375

H $ 5375

Price in Words,

LOAM STRIPPING & RESTORATICN OF
EXISTING GRAVEL ACCESS ROAD

LS

1 $ 3485

Price in Words__

| LOAM STRIPPING/STOCKRILING!

REMOVAL OF EXCESS

LF

1183 |'$ 18860

Pr:ce :n Words

FURNISH AND INSTALL ABUTMENTS,
PRECAST WING WALLS, AND GRAVEL
APFROACHES FOR BOARDWALK

EA

4 $ 6200

Price in Words

FURNISH AND INSTALL 9" WIDE
BOARDWALK INCLUDING THE
HELICAL PILE DESIGN AND

INSTALLATION

LF

$ 492

126 | $ 50040

Price in Words

195113083

February 2024

Page 48 of 189



Merrimack Riverfzont Trail System Project ~ Phase |1

Engineer: Stantec Consulting Senvicas inc.

Big

Agenda Item #15.1.

Section 00331 Page 6 of 8

ftem
MNo.

Item Descriptlon

Unit

Unit Price

QTY

Total Price

Price In Words

FURNISH, INSTALL, & REMOVE WOQD
MATS AT WETLAND CROSSINGS

SF

$ 430

1440

$ 6192

~]

* Price in Words

CONSTRUCT 8 WIDE GRAVEL TRAIL

$ 1525

1,160

$ 17890

1 Price in Words

i PLACE, COMPACT, GRADE, AND

STABILIZE DISTURBEL AREAS ALONG
BOTH SIDES OF THE GRAVEL TRAIL
SHOULDERS — RESTORATION OF

GROWTH (CLASS B)

LF

1.16C

$ 8120

At L OWANCE FOR SCILS/CONCRETE
TESTING

L ALLOW

$5,000

35,000

Price in Words

16

MIST. WORK & CLEAN UP

%1730

Price in Werds

1730

11

FURNISH SVWPPP PLAN AND
COMPLETE WEEKLY INSPECTIONS

LS

$ 1235

Price in Words

1851130823

February 2021

Page 49 of 189



Merrimack Riverfront Trail System Project — Phase Hi

Bid

Agenda Item #15.1.

Engineer: Siantec Consulting Services Inc. Secticn 00331 Page 7 of 8
Iltem " e 5 .
No. tem Descriptlon Unit Unit Price | QTY Total Price
LEDGE 7 BOULDER REMOVAL cY $ 818 10 3 180
i2 .
Prize ir Words
FURNISH AND INSTALL MiRAF] 500X
GEOTEXTILE FABRIC AS REQUIRED sY $ 50 1290 | § 774
i3 BY THE ENGINEER
Frice in Words
54" HIGH PEDESTRIAN / BIKE RAIL 20
. ALONG ONE BOARDWAL K LF 19208 $ 4160
14 o
Price in Words
TOTAL BASE BID PRICE (ltem #1, THROUGH item #14):
{in figures)§ 143741
{in words) One hundred forty three thousand seven bundred forly cne
Doliars

The apparent low bidder for this project will be selected based on the LOWEST TOTAL BASE BID

PRICE.

FART B - BID CONDITIONS

The BIDDER understands that the OWNER reserves the right to reject any or all Bida and to waive any
rformalities in the Bidding

The BIDDER agrees that the Bid shall be valid and may not be withdrawn for a pericd of Sixty {80)

calendar days after the scheduled closing tme for receivirg Bids.

Upon receipt of written notice of the acceptance of this Bid, the BIDDER shali execule the formal Contrant
attached and deliver the Conlract and Perfermance Bond and Payment Bond required by the General

Conditions ¥

¢ the OVWNER within five (5) days.

The Bid Securily attached in the sum of ten percent (10%) of the B¢ is to become the property of the
OWNER :n the event the Contract and Bonds are not executed within the time set forth, as tiquidated
damages for the delay and additional expense to the OWNER caused thereby.

This Bid may be accepled by the CWNER at any time within sixty {60} days of the opening of Bids.

195143093

February 2021

Page 50 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Merrimack Riverfront Trai: System Project — Phase |l Bid

Engineer: Staniec Consulting Services Inc. Section 00331 Page 8 of 8

in case this Bid shali be accepted by the OWNER, and the undersigned shalt fait to execute the Contract
and furnlsh satisfaciory Bonds, within five {5) days from the date of Notice of Award of the Contract, ther
the OWNER may, at his opticn. determine that the undersigned has abandoned the Contract, and

There upon, this Bid shal be null and veid, and the Big Security accompanying this Bid shalt ve farfeited
to and become tne property of the OWNER, or the penalty of the Bid Bond shall be invoked as liguidated
damages for such failure or neglect; otherwise, such Bid Sccurity shall be returned 1o the undersignea,

Tne full name and residence of all persons and parties submitting a Bid as pringipals are as foliows:

Jonhn Beiko 242 Lawrence Rd Salem, NH 03079

PART C - EXECUTICON

Tne unde:rsigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this bid is in ail respects bona fide, fair and made
without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this paragraph, the word "person” shalt mean
any naturat person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or cther business or legat entity.

3eal (if corporation) ’/7
v

{5ighatue of aib }
_ Ciwner

(Tt of B:DOER)
242 Lawrence Rd

{Busiress address of B:DDERY
Salem, NH (3079

{Town, Stare and Zip Code)

Dated al _ 242 Lawrence Rd Salem, NH the _2 day of _Marcn L2021,

END OF SECTION

195113093 February 2021

Page 51 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Merrimack Riverfront Trail System Project — Phase |l Bid Bond

Engineer Stantec Consulting Services Inc. Section 00410 Page 1 of 1

SECTION 00410
BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned Belko Landscaping, LLC

as Principal, and Great Midwest Insurance Company

as Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound unto Hooksett Conservation Commission as OWNER in the
penal sum of _Ten percent (10%) of the bid

for the payment of
which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, successors and assigns.

Signed, this 1st day of _March 2021. The Condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the

Principal has submitted to the Hooksett Conservation Commission a certain Bid, attached hereto and
hereby made a part hereof to enter into a contract in writing, for the CONSTRUCTION OF the

MERRIMACK RIVERFRONT TRAIL SYSTEM PROJECT = PHASE lII.
NOW, THEREFORE,

(a) Ifsaid Bid shall be rejected, or

(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the Farm of
Contract attached hereto (properly completed in accordance with said Bid) and shall furnish a
Bond for his faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing
labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the
agreement created by the acceptance of said Bid, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the
same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability
of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this
obligation as herein stated. The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the
obligations of said Surety and its Bond shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension
of the time within which the OWNER may accept such Bid; and said Surety does hereby waive
notice of any such extension.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such
of them as arg corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to
be signed hy?reil proper officers, the day and year set forth above.

(Ls.) J 4

‘ :l | h

Principal John Belko, Managing Member ] 1

Great Midwﬂlst Insurance Company al ;

Surety = \ 3

By. O L 25
Jeffrey W. Crawford, Attorney-in-Fact )

IMPORTANT: Surely companies executing Bonds must appear an the Treasury Department's most
current list of companies holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable sureties, known
as circular 570 (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the
state where the project is located.

END OF SECTION

185113093 February 2021

Page 52 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

- POWER OF ATTORNEY

Great Midwest Insurance Company

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that GREAT MIDWEST INSURANCE COMPANY, a Texas Corporation, with its principal office
in Houston, TX, does he constitute and appoint:
PHILIP B. CRAWFORD, JEFFREY W. CRAWFORD, JAMES M. CRAWFORD, RICHARD W. CRAWFORD

its true and lawful Attorney(s)-In-Fact to make, execute, seal and deliver for, and on its behalf as surety, any and all bands, undertakings or other
writings obligatory in nature of a bond.

This authority is made under and by the authority of a resolution which was passed by the Board of Directors of GREAT MIDWEST
|INSURANCE COMPANY, on the 1% day of October, 2018 as follows:

Resolved, that the President, or any officer, be and hereby is, authorized to appoint and empower any representative of the Company or|
other parson or persons as Attomey-in-Fact to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertakings, policies, contracts of indemnity or ather
writings obligatory in nature of 8 bond not to exceed Ten Million dellars ($10,000,000.00), which the Company might execute through its duly elected
officers, and affix the seal of the Company thereto. Any said execution of such documents by an Attomey-In-Fact shall be as binding upon the
Company as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company. Any Attorney-In-Fact, so appointed,
may be removed in the Company's sole discretion and the autherity so granted may be revoked as specified in the Power of Attorney,

Resaolved, that the signature of the President and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile on any power of altorney granted,
and the signature of the Secretary, and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any certificate of any such power and any such
power or certificate bearing such facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company. Any such power 8o executed and sealed |
and certificate so executed and sealed shall, with respect to any bond of undertaking to which it is attached, continue to be valid and binding on the |
Company.

IN VWITNESS THEREOF, GREAT MIDWEST INSURANCE COMPANY, has caused this insirument to be signed by its President, and its |
Corporate Seal to be affied this 30th day of November, 2020.

GREAT MIDWEST INSURANCE COMPANY

By el w el I

Mark \W. Haushill
Prasidant

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On this 30th day of November, 2020, before me, personally came Mark W. Haushill to me known, who being duly swarn, did depose and
say thal he is the President of GREAT MIDWEST INSURANCE COMPANY, the corporation described in and which executed the above instrument:
that he executed said instrument on behalf of the corporation by authority of his office under the By-laws of said corporation.

i w.,ﬁ CHRISTINA BISHOP W
fﬁ" Notary Publlc, State of Taxas BY L
35 P83 Comm, Expires 04-14-2021 Christina Bishop
LGNS Notary ID 131080488 Notary Public

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Secretary of GREAT MIDWEST INSURANCE COMPANY, A Texas Insurance Company, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that
the original Power of Attorney of which the foregoing is a true and correct copy, is in full force and effect and has not been revoked and the resolutions
as sel forth are now in force.

AL ¥
Signed and Sealed at Houston, TX this /ﬁ( Day of -’l':ﬁ\ 202’ ¥ o e JL
Led W T
Ao AN I
C 4 |
BY d f( . g
" Leslie K. Shay /e
¥ Etar;d / .
EEJ:,{"\. AN

Yi ;’.'j )

“WARNING: Any person who knowingly and with intent to defraud any Insurance company or other parson, files and application for insurance of claim
containing any materially false information, or conceals for the purpose of misleading, information concerning any fact material thereto, commits a
fraudulent insurance act, which is a crime and subjects such person to eriminal and civil panaltios.

Page 53 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Q_,) Stantec

CONTRACTOR REFERENCE INTERVIEW FORM

TODAYS DATE: March 31, 2021
THIS PROJECT NAME AND LOCATION:

Merrimack Riverfront Trail Project — Phase 111
Hooksett Conservation Commission
35 Main Street, Hookset, NH 03106

CONTRACTOR’S NAME: Belko Landscaping
ADDRESS: 242 Lawrence Rd, Salem, NH 03079

REFERENCE PROJECT:

NAME AND LOCATION: Boston Housing Authority, Boston, MA
DATE OF COMPLETION: October & December 2020

TYPE OF WORK: Stonewall and concrete stair repairs
CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $14,615

REFERENCE CONTACT:

COMPANY NAME: Boston Housing Authority
CONTACT PERSON: Mauri Stavenson

PHONE NUMBER: (617) 988-5396

RECORD OF PERFORMANCE:

SCHEDULE OF WORK, MATERIALS, SUBCONTRACTORS, TIMELINESS:
Good, caused no delays to the project

WAS THE PROJECT COMPLETED ON TIME, IF NO, WHY:  Yes

QUALITY OF WORK: Excellent

MANAGEMENT QUALITY & RESPONSIVENESS (HOME OFFICE SUPPORT):

Very Good

HOW WERE THEY DEALING WITH CHANGE ORDERS (ie. NEGOTIATED FAIRLY,
TIMELY PROCESS)? N/A — No Change Orders

ABILITY OF EQUIPMENT AND SKILLED LABOR: No issues
OVERALL PERFORMANCE: Good

COMMENTS: n/a

WOULD YOU HIRE THEM FOR FUTURE WORK? Yes
EVALUATED BY: Dan Tatem REVIEWED BY: Dan Brassard

Page 54 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Q_,) Stantec

CONTRACTOR REFERENCE INTERVIEW FORM

TODAYS DATE: March 31, 2021
THIS PROJECT NAME AND LOCATION:

Merrimack Riverfront Trail Project — Phase 111
Hooksett Conservation Commission
35 Main Street, Hookset, NH 03106

CONTRACTOR’S NAME: Belko Landscaping

ADDRESS: 242 Lawrence Rd, Salem, NH 03079
REFERENCE PROJECT:

NAME AND LOCATION: Cold Springs Park, Newton, MA
DATE OF COMPLETION: April 2020

TYPE OF WORK: Stone dust recreational trail construction and maintenance
CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $41,000

REFERENCE CONTACT:

COMPANY NAME: City of Newton, MA

CONTACT PERSON: Luis Demorizi

PHONE NUMBER: (617) 796-0560

RECORD OF PERFORMANCE:

SCHEDULE OF WORK, MATERIALS, SUBCONTRACTORS, TIMELINESS:
Good, caused no delays to the project
WAS THE PROJECT COMPLETED ON TIME, IF NO, WHY:  Yes

QUALITY OF WORK: Very Good
MANAGEMENT QUALITY & RESPONSIVENESS (HOME OFFICE SUPPORT):
Very Good

HOW WERE THEY DEALING WITH CHANGE ORDERS (ie. NEGOTIATED FAIRLY,
TIMELY PROCESS)? N/A — No Change Orders

ABILITY OF EQUIPMENT AND SKILLED LABOR: No issues
OVERALL PERFORMANCE: Good

COMMENTS: n/a

WOULD YOU HIRE THEM FOR FUTURE WORK? Yes
EVALUATED BY: Dan Tatem REVIEWED BY: Dan Brassard

Page 55 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Q_,) Stantec

CONTRACTOR REFERENCE INTERVIEW FORM

TODAYS DATE: March 31, 2021
THIS PROJECT NAME AND LOCATION:

Merrimack Riverfront Trail Project — Phase 111
Hooksett Conservation Commission
35 Main Street, Hookset, NH 03106

CONTRACTOR’S NAME: Belko Landscaping
ADDRESS: 242 Lawrence Rd, Salem, NH 03079

REFERENCE PROJECT:
NAME AND LOCATION: Mercier Center Courtyard, Lowell, MA
DATE OF COMPLETION: October 2020

TYPE OF WORK: Courtyard Construction
CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $468,360

REFERENCE CONTACT:

COMPANY NAME: Lowell Housing Authority
CONTACT PERSON: Tim Wong

PHONE NUMBER: (781) 756-0001

RECORD OF PERFORMANCE:

SCHEDULE OF WORK, MATERIALS, SUBCONTRACTORS, TIMELINESS:
Good, caused no delays to the project

WAS THE PROJECT COMPLETED ON TIME, IF NO, WHY:  Delays due to COVID but
acceptable.

QUALITY OF WORK: Good
MANAGEMENT QUALITY & RESPONSIVENESS (HOME OFFICE SUPPORT):
Good

HOW WERE THEY DEALING WITH CHANGE ORDERS (ie. NEGOTIATED FAIRLY,
TIMELY PROCESS)? N/A — No Change Orders

ABILITY OF EQUIPMENT AND SKILLED LABOR: No issues
OVERALL PERFORMANCE: Good

COMMENTS: n/a

WOULD YOU HIRE THEM FOR FUTURE WORK? Yes
EVALUATED BY: Dan Tatem REVIEWED BY: Dan Brassard

Page 56 of 189



Agenda Item #15.1.

Merrimack Riverfront Trail System, Phase I Notice of Award
Hooksett, New Hampshire Section 00420 - Page 1 of 2

SECTION 00420
NOTICE OF AWARD

Project Description: CONSTRUCTION OF MERRIMACK RIVERFRONT TRAIL SYSTEM PROJECT,
PHASE llI

The OWNER has considered the Bid submitted by you for the above-described Work in response to its
Advertisement for Bids dated MARCH 3, 2021, and Instructions to Bidders.

You are hereby notified that your Bid has been accepted for items in the amount of $143,741.00.

You are required by the Instructions to Bidders to execute the Agreement and furnish the required
CONTRACTOR'S and certificates of insurance within five (5) calendar days from the date of this Notice to
you.

If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said insurances within five (5) days from the date of
this Notice, said OWNER will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER'S
acceptance of your Bid as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your Bid Bond. The OWNER will be entitled
to such other rights as may be granted by law.

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this Notice of Award to the OWNER.

Dated this day of , 2021.

OWNER:

Hooksett Conservation Commission
Hooksett, New Hampshire

By: Cindy Robertson, Chairperson

195113093 February 2021

Page 57 of 189



Merrimack Riverfront Trail System, Phase I Notice of Award
Hooksett, New Hampshire Section 00420 - Page 2 of 2

Agenda Item #15.1.

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE

Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged

by _ Belko Landscaping, LLC

(Contractor)
this the day of , 2021
By
(Authorized Signature)
Title
END OF SECTION
195113093 February 2021

Page 58 of 189



Agenda Item #15.2.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Approval of Sole Source Agreement with the Student Conservation Association
(SCA)

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department: Community Development
Staff Contact: Leann Fuller, Community Development Clerk

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Student Conservation Association, Inc. (SCA) was contacted by the Hooksett Conservation
Commission to provide a proposal to complete a trail loop on the Pinnacle and, time permitting,
create a new trail along the river of the Hooksett Riverwalk. This contract was presented to the
Council on May 13, 2020 but due to COVID, all projects with the SCA were pushed off until 2021. In
2019, The SCA completed a trail loop in the Clay Pond Conservation Area and the Conservation
Commission was very pleased with their work. Five to seven members of the SCA Conservation
Corps Crew will work for an 11-day "hitch". The project is planned for July 14 - July 24. One
advantage of having students devoted to conservation complete this task is that there is a minimal
amount of brush and tree disturbance. Using mostly hand tools, the trail can be routed around large
trees, dense vegetation and any other obstacles.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Per the SCA Contract, the fee for this work is $10,500.

RECOMMENDATION:

Motion to approve the sole source agreement with the Student Conservation Association, Inc. for the
work to be completed in 2021 in the amount of $10,500.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to approve the sole source agreement with the Student Conservation Association, Inc. for the
work to be completed in 2021 in the amount of $10,500.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:

Concur-Council approved this project last May 2020, but the contractor was unable to move forward
due to COVID-19.

ATTACHMENTS:
Hooksett and SCA NH Agreement 2021

Page 59 of 189



Agenda Item #15.2.

1 AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE STUDENT CONSERVATION ASSOCIATION, INC.
AND
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between The Student Conservation Association,
Inc., a nonprofit New York corporation, with its principal place of business at 4601 North
Fairfax Drive, Suite 900 Arlington, VA 22203 (“SCA”), and the Town of Hooksett, New
Hampshire with its principal place of business at 35 Main Street, Hooksett, NH 03106.

1. BACKGROUND

The SCA is a nonprofit organization, which fosters life-long stewardship of the
environment by offering opportunities for education, leadership and personal development
to its participants while providing a high quality public service in natural resource
management and conservation. SCA recruits, trains and places qualified young adults to
serve in environmental conservation projects as members of the SCA conservation corps
program. The SCA’s residential New Hampshire program provides conservation crew
services statewide to partner Agencies.

The Hooksett Conservation Commission is a public commission with a mission to work
with town, state, federal and private agencies and individuals on wetland and
conservation issues. They review and update Town ordinances and resource information
concerning wetlands, prime wetlands, natural resources inventory and other conservation
concerns, and other activities as determined by the Commission. Lastly, the Commission
plans for and preserves community green spaces. The commission has authority to enter into
this agreement to accomplish the purposes of its mission. Throughout this agreement the
commission will be referred to as “the Project Partner.”

2. PARTY RESPONSIBILITIES

A. It is mutually agreed by the parties that SCA and Project Partner shall cooperate in the
placement of one 5-7 member SCA Conservation Corps crew for an 11-day term of service
during the 2020 field season (6/15/2021 or whichever later date the crew begins service
through 10/08/2021 or whichever later date the crew completes service) to perform trail
service and other conservation service activities in New Hampshire as further described
in this agreement.

2.1 SCA agrees (“Project Services™):

a. To provide one well-trained, team of 5-7 corps members for an 11-day hitch
period, July 14 — July 24, during the 2021 field season;

b. To manage the crew and to implement the project activities as described in this
section 2;

Page 60 of 189



agrONE

o

Agenda Item #15.2.

2 AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

c. To develop a new trail at Pinnacle Park as identified as "Future Trail" on the
map (Attachment A), and installation of posts and signage provided by HCC.
It is anticipated that 4x4 posts with a small map will be located at trail
junctions. The trail, as pictured on the trail map, will be built according to
sustainable trail design. Trail structures will be added, where applicable, to
provide drainage or stability while following sustainable practices requiring
minimal routine maintenance. Trailblazing (in appropriate color) will be
included. Any Potential trail closures will be determined by the HCC.

d. To develop approximately 900 feet of trail starting from the Island field
along the River downstream to connect with the main trail at  the Mason
Easement area. Depicted as dotted/solid yellow from Island Field going
downstream — See Attachment B. The trail, as pictured on the trail map, will
be built according to sustainable trail design. Trail structures will be added,
where applicable, to provide drainage or stability while following sustainable
practices requiring minimal routine maintenance.

e. To provide food, tools, vehicles, and equipment necessary to complete the
projects;

f. To provide staff support: staff members are responsible for all supervision of
the corps members as needed;

f. To provide an AmeriCorps Educational Award to qualifying SCA members,
but only if and when made available by the Corporation for National and
Community Service; The Corporation for National and Community
Service has prohibited the following activities for AmeriCorps members
while they are accumulating service or training hours, or otherwise
performing activities associated with the program:

Attempting to influence legislation.

Organizing or engaging in protests, petitions, boycotts, or strikes.

Assisting, promoting or deterring union organizing.

Impairing existing contracts for services of collective bargaining agreements.
Engaging in partisan political activities or other activities designed to influence the
outcome of an election to any public office.

Participating in, or endorsing, events or activities that are likely to include advocacy
for or against political parties, political platforms, political candidates, proposed
legislation, or elected officials.

Engaging in religious instruction, conducting worship services, providing instruction
as part of a program that includes mandatory religious instruction or worship,
constructing or operating facilities devoted to religious instruction or worship,

Page 61 of 189



Agenda Item #15.2.

3 AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

maintaining facilities primarily or inherently devoted to religious instruction or
worship, or engaging in any form of religious proselytization;

8. Providing a direct benefit for

a. A business organized for profit;

b. A labor union;

c. A partisan political organization;

d. A nonprofit organization that fails to comply with the restrictions contained in
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 except that nothing in
this section shall be construed to prevent participants from engaging in
advocacy activities undertaken at their own initiative; and

e. An organization engaged in the religious activities described in paragraph (g)
of this section, unless Corporation assistance is not used to support those
religious activities;

9. Voter registration drives held by AmeriCorps members.

10. Providing abortion services or referrals for receipt of such services.

11. Writing grants or raising funds for an organization's general operating expenses or
endowment. The only kind of fundraising that members are allowed to do is
fundraising directly in support of their particular project. Examples of allowable
activities: Seeking donations (in the form of in-kind materials or dollars) for a specific
project they are carrying out as an AmeriCorps member; Writing a grant to a
foundation for funds for a specific project they’re carrying out, such as a community
clean-up. Allowable fundraising activities must add up to no more than 10% of the
member’s total hours; and

12. Other activities that the Corporation determines will be prohibited.

g. To provide Project Partner with a summary report of services performed.

C. The Project Partner agrees:

a. To provide site and project work specifications, technical assistance as
required, and to collaborate with the SCA staff as mutually agreed to carry out
Project work;

b. To pay SCA a project fee of $10,500 (Ten Thousand five Hundred Dollars) for
Project Services to be paid in accordance to below 3.1.d; and any additional
amounts that may be required by section 5 of this Agreement.

¢. To purchase and provide all necessary building materials and supplies for the
projects;

d. To provide safe and meaningful stewardship projects appropriate for SCA
members consistent with members’ training;

Page 62 of 189



Agenda Item #15.2.

4 AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

e. To permit SCA members to wear an approved SCA uniform during their term
of service;

f. If required by federal, state, municipal or local subdivision law or
regulations, to arrange for all permits, licenses, and approvals and other
administrative or governmental clearances necessary with regard to the
administration of the project;

g. To provide a written evaluation of the members’ performance within fifteen
calendar days of termination of the Agreement.

3. PROGRAM CONDITIONS

3.1 The parties mutually agree:

a. SCA members shall not be assigned law enforcement or firefighting duties; and
shall not be permitted to handle or discharge any firearms or explosives unless
provided explicit permission by SCA’s National Program Manager - Residential.

b. SCA agrees to accept any extra tools, materials, equipment and facilities
furnished by the Project Partner on a loan basis only, and such items shall, where
applicable, be returned in the same condition received except for normal wear
and tear in project use.

c. The Project Partner shall have the right to require the removal of any SCA member
on the basis of unacceptable performance and/or conduct problems that could not
be resolved with the help of SCA. SCA shall have the right to withdraw any SCA
member if the Project Partner fails to provide sufficient and appropriate project
assignments, safe conditions including without limitation free from discrimination
and harassment, appropriate housing, training, or project oversight. Provided there
is no imminent threat to safety or health, the relevant party shall, prior to taking
such corrective action, take the following steps: document the problem in writing,
provide prior notice to the other party, and provide the other party with an
opportunity to take corrective action.

d. SCA may present two invoices for costs and obligations undertaken for the Project,
as follows: (1) An initial invoice requesting 50% of the estimated Project cost will
be submitted to the Project Partner prior to the start of the Project, and (2) the
remaining costs shall be invoiced upon completion of the Project. The Project
Partner agrees to make payment to SCA within 30 days of the date of such
invoices. In the event any itemized invoice remains unpaid for more than 30 days,
the Project Partner agrees to pay SCA an interest charge on the outstanding balance
at the rate of 1% a month from the date the invoice was rendered. All invoices
should be emailed to: Leann Fuller - LFuller@hooksett.org.

Page 63 of 189


mailto:LFuller@hooksett.org

Agenda Item #15.2.

5 AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

e.  The Project Partner shall not hire any SCA member as an employee of the Project
Partner prior to, or during, the SCA member’s service as a corps member.

f.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties and may only be
amended by written agreement, signed by both Parties.

4. INSURANCE

During the term of the Agreement and any extension, SCA will carry the following
insurance:

(A) Commercial general liability with minimum limits of at least $1,000,000 per
occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate applicable to the services provided under this
Agreement;

(B) Commercial automobile liability coverage of $1,000,000 (per accident); and

(C) Workers’ compensation coverage meeting State of New Hampshire required limits
and providing employer’s liability coverage.

Prior to commencing services, SCA will furnish to Project Partner a certificate of
insurance proving it carries the insurance described above. The certificate must indicate
that Project Partner and its officials, agents, volunteers, and employees are named as an
additional insured on the general liability and automobile liability policies on a primary
and noncontributory basis. If SCA’s liability policies require endorsements to effectuate
additional insured status, SCA must provide the endorsements to Project

Partner prior to commencing services.

Project Partner is not required to insure SCA, its staff, crew members, any contractor,
subcontractor or any professional service provider.

5. TERM and TERMINATION.

5.1 This Agreement shall become effective upon the date it is signed by both parties
and shall remain in effect during the period of performance specified for this project.
Either party may cancel this Agreement immediately upon written notice (including
email) as a result of (i) material breach by the other party, or (ii) for COVID-19 reasons.
In the event of a material breach, Project Partner shall pay SCA for all work performed
through the notice date. In the event of termination due to COVID-19 reasons, Project
Partner shall pay SCA for all work performed through notice period and shall reimburse
SCA for wind-down of the program, including but not limited to travel, housing and
other costs associated with safely securing program participants.

5.2 Either party may cancel the Agreement without cause with thirty (30) days’ notice.
In the event either party cancels without cause, SCA shall wind down work upon notice
and Project Partner shall pay SCA for all work performed through the notice period as
well as a service fee of 20 percent (20%) of the remaining balance, as Project Partner

Page 64 of 189



Agenda Item #15.2.

AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

acknowledgment of SCA’s upfront investment in standing up the program that it would
have otherwise recovered throughout the term of the Agreement.

6. PROJECT COORDINATORS

The Project Coordinators for this Agreement are:

A. For the Project Partner:
Programmatically:

Administratively:

B. For the SCA
Programmatically:

Administratively:

Cindy Robertson

Chair

Hooksett Conservation Commission
cindyrob79@gmail.com

Leann Fuller
Administrative Assistant
Town of Hooksett

(603) 485-8471
LFuller@hooksett.org

Davis Brush
Program Manager,
SCA NH Corps
75 South Main St. Unit 7 PMB 116
Concord NH 03301,
P: 603-485-2191
C:585-737-714
dbrush@thesca.org

&
Zach Colatch
Conservation Coordinator
SCA NH Corps
P: 603.485.2191
zcolatch@thesca.org

Rebecca Donovan

Agreements Administrator
Student Conservation Association
689 River Road

Charlestown, NH 03603

P: 603.504.3239, ext. 1149

C: 413.695.6155
rdonovan@thesca.org

Page 65 of 189


mailto:cindyrob79@gmail.com
mailto:LFuller@hooksett.org
mailto:dbrush@thesca.org
mailto:zcolatch@thesca.org
mailto:rdonovan@thesca.org

Agenda Item #15.2.

7 AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

7. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.
This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties and may only be amended by
written agreement, signed by both Parties.

8. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of New Hampshire. Any suit,
action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement must be brought in an appropriate
court in Merrimack County, New Hampshire, or, if appropriate, a federal court within the
State of New Hampshire, and the parties accept the exclusive personal jurisdiction of these
courts.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
by their duly authorized officers on the dates set forth below.

THE STUDENT CONSERVATION PROJECT PARTNER
ASSOCIATION, INC.

By: By:

Name: Name: Cindy Robertson

Title: Title: Chair, Hooksett Conservation Commission
Date: Date:

Page 66 of 189



Agenda Item #15.2.

AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

Attachment A: Pinnacle Park Trail Map that includes the “Future Trail”

.

SRR

.y

.
Observation
Tower Site

The Pinnacle

* /7~ Bud and Lorraine Locke
Dedication Plaque and Picnic Arsa

/ )
Trails
s Old Carriage Road to Summit
w— \llage Overlook Trall
— Pond Loop Icehouse Trail
w— \Water District Access Road

~
el vl

&
s
&

..nu-"'n...

Page 67 of 189



Agenda Item #15.2.

9 AGMT Hooksett — PO-00731473

Attachment B: River Walk Trail Map —

d
=

system and possible trail locations. It is not
intended to imply the only proposed or possible

g
Possible Trails 5
ProposedTrails §
Existing Trais '.ii
LJ Approximate Boundary of CE 2
2
Map 8: Trails Map o 430 wo N
@ Hooksett, Town of, CE-G, TN A
= Y 115.5 * acres, Hooksett, NH 12/3/2013; Source: 2011 NAP

Page 68 of 189



Agenda Item #15.3.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: NH Recreational Trail Program Grant Contract
Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department: = Community Development
Staff Contact: Leann Fuller, Community Development Clerk

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Conservation Commission was awarded an $80,000 Recreational Trail Program Grant for Phase
Il of the Hooksett Riverwalk Trail. The grant is on a reimbursement basis and will need a contract
signed agreeing to the process. The contract was reviewed by legal counsel and it was found to be
satisfactory.

RECOMMENDATION:

Allow the Conservation Commission to move forward with the Grant contract to be signed by the
Project Administrator listed as Cindy Robertson on the grant application.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to have Cindy Robertson sign the Recreation Trail Program Grant contract to move forward
with appropriate reimbursement of work to be completed for Phase Il of the Hooksett Riverwalk Trail.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:
RTP Contract

Page 69 of 189



Agenda Item #15.3.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES
BUREAU OF TRAILS
RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM GRANT AGREEMENT

This grant is, effective upon Governor and Council approval, between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, through its Commissioner, hereunto
duly authorized through the Division of Parks and Recreation Director, hereinafter referred to as
the "STATE", and Town of Hooksett, hereinafter referred to as the "GRANTEE".

GENERAL PURPOSE

The Grantee agrees to comply with Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Title 23 U.S. Code § 206
— Recreational trails program. The Grantee agrees to perform, as outlined in their application,
services related to trail maintenance, restoration, development, acquisition, trail-side and trail-
head facilities, operation of education programs promoting safety and environmental protection,
or improving access and use of trails by persons with disabilities, in accordance with the Fixing
America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act of 2015.

TERM OF GRANT

This grant, and the obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective upon Federal
Highway Administration (FHWA) and Governor and Council approval. The term of this grant
shall run from the commencement date through December 31, 2021, with any exceptions listed
on page 4.

GRANT TOTAL

The maximum amount of funds available to the Grantee pursuant to this agreement shall be
$80,000.00. Itis further understood and agreed that the Grantee shall only be reimbursed on
the basis of actual costs incurred, and that the State's determination of eligible and approved
costs shall be final in all cases.

It is understood and agreed that all payments of all sums by the State hereunder are contingent
upon availability and continued appropriation of federal funds, and, if for any reason whatsoever,
such funds shall be terminated or reduced or otherwise become unavailable, the State may
terminate this grant in whole or part immediately. Any payments allotted but not applied for by
the Grantee on the project termination date shall lapse.

COST SHARING PROVISIONS

The Grantee will be required to provide adequate documentation in a format that fully accounts
for and certifies that the matching funds have been, in fact, incurred on the project. The Grantee
has pledged a minimum of 20% of the total project cost or value; $20,000.00, to the match
requirement.

AMENDMENT

The Grantee agrees that they will not amend, revise, or change the approved application or work
plan without the written consent of the State.

State of New Hampshire; Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, Bureau of Trails
Recreational Trails Program Grant Agreement FY-2021 Page 1 of 4

Page 70 of 189



Agenda Item #15.3.

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

The Grantee shall submit a project progress report with each request for reimbursement. The
report shall outline how each expense item has been applied to the project and provide a plan
for future work. Failure to do so may result in the withholding of reimbursement by the State and
may also result in impacts to future grant awards. The final billing submitted must be
accompanied by the final progress report stating the project is 100% complete and provide color
photos detailing the completeness of project.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Any equipment, steel or iron purchased with RTP funds must comply with Buy America
requirements. Disposal of equipment in any manner shall require written authorization from the
State of NH — DNCR, Bureau of Trails with approval from the FHWA. Equipment may be traded
or sold by a Grantee which will no longer provide services on trails used by the general public
provided that receipts from the sale shall be returned to the Bureau in the same proportion as
originally funded by the Bureau.

First billing for materials/goods & equipment purchases must be accompanied by no less than
three (3) competitive vendor quotes for said equipment & goods/materials if 2 $2000, and
service agreements are = $10,000.

Equipment purchased through the Recreational Trails Program shall be required to display (at
locations designated by the Bureau) at least one (1), but not more than two (2), decals indicating
that the equipment has been partially funded by this program. Decals shall be provided by the
Bureau.

Equipment purchased through the Recreational Trails Program shall be maintained in good
mechanical condition. The FHWA, through the State of New Hampshire shall retain a permanent
interest in the form of a lien on any and all equipment purchased through the Recreational Trails
Program, for the life of the equipment.

ANNUAL EQUIPMENT REPORT

An annual equipment report on the condition and location of trail equipment purchased with
grant funds shall be submitted annually by December 31, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025. The
Grantee agrees to retain and use any acquired equipment for intended recreational trail
maintenance purposes only in perpetuity.

REIMBURSEMENT

The State agrees to reimburse the Grantee in accordance with the application rules subject to
the following terms and conditions;

1. This agreement may be modified, waived, or discharged only by an instrument
signed by the parties hereto.
2. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that in the performance of this

grant and the services hereunder, the Grantee and its servants and employees
are in all respects independent contractors and shall neither be determined to be
employed, nor agents of the State, nor be entitled to any benefits, worker's
compensation, or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

3. The Grantee must pay 100 percent of the cost of an item before submitting a
request for reimbursement of eligible costs. The Grantee shall submit invoices for
actual costs incurred. Reimbursement from the State will take approximately 60
days. Invoice indicating payment in full for the purchase of equipment must
accompany billing.

State of New Hampshire; Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, Bureau of Trails
Recreational Trails Program Grant Agreement FY-2021 Page 2 of 4

Page 71 of 189



Agenda Item #15.3.

a. Billings must be within 30 days of incurring the costs.

b. All billings must be accompanied by proof of payment such as
credit card receipts or cancelled checks (front & back).

C. All billing must be accompanied by a match form showing a 20

percent match has been met for the total cost of the billing until
total match for project is met.

4. A request for reimbursement may not be submitted to the State for less than 25
percent of the total grant amount. The final 25 percent of the total grant amount
may be withheld until the project is verified complete by the state, the federal
grantor agency, or their representatives. Standard reimbursement forms will be
provided by the State. All match shall be accounted for before final payment.

5. Reimbursements will be made only for items that were listed on the Project
Application and subsequent approved amendments.

COMPLIANCE AND CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION REPORT

Project progress inspections may be conducted by State or Federal representatives. State
representatives may, at any time, inspect the project and review the Grantee's records and files.
Upon notification of project completion, the State will inspect projects and prepare a written
report. Recommendations for corrective actions will be made, if appropriate. A copy of the
report will be sent to the Grantee. Deficiencies, if any, shall be corrected and reported, in writing
to the State within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the inspection report. Final reimbursement
will not be made until deficiencies are corrected.

The Grantee agrees to submit to all requested inspections and audits by State and Federal
officials which relate to the services and payments under this grant.

PENALITIES

1. Termination of Grant: Any failure by the Grantee to abide by or carry out any of the terms
or conditions of this grant shall, at the discretion of the State, result in termination of this
grant, if, after notice to the Grantee, said default is not remedied within ten (10) days. In
the event of termination, no further payments shall be made by the State.

2. Denial of future RTP funds: failure to comply with any and all terms or conditions of this
grant may result in denial of future RTP funds for no less than 2 years from current grant
year.

RECORD RETENTION

All program and financial records shall be retained by the Grantee for State and Federal audit
purposes and available for public inspection for a period of three (3) years after the final
payment on the project.

At a minimum, the following records shall be maintained and made available for audit: invoices
for purchased materials and for all design and construction costs (indicating check number and
date paid on each invoice), cancelled checks or copies thereof, bid, solicitation, and
procurement documents, work changes, and change orders.

SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Grantee covenants to indemnify and hold harmless the State from, and against, any and all
losses suffered by the State, and any and all claims, liability or penalties asserted against the
State, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, based in, resulting from, arising out of, (or
which may be claimed to have arisen out of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee. Nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State.

This covenant shall survive the termination of the grant.
State of New Hampshire; Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, Bureau of Trails
Recreational Trails Program Grant Agreement FY-2021 Page 3 of 4

Page 72 of 189



Agenda Item #15.3.

RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM GRANTEE INFORMATION

Organization Name: Town of Hooksett Vendor Code: 177412

Grant#: 21-14 Grant Amount: $80,000.00 Match Pledged: $20,000.00

Appropriation Code Contract Expiration Date
37770000-074-500585 December 31, 2021
Grantee/Date Witness/Date

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF

On this the day of ,20___, before me, ,
Project Administrator, appeared, known to me, (or satisfactorily proven) to be, the person
subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same for the
purpose therein contained.

Justice of the Peace/Notary Public

My commission expires Seal:

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

Chief, Bureau of Trails Witness/Date

Approved as to form, substance and execution:

Attorney General's Office

Contract expires December 31, 2021
Approved by Governor & Council

at the meeting

Item#

State of New Hampshire; Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, Bureau of Trails
Recreational Trails Program Grant Agreement FY-2021 Page 4 of 4

Page 73 of 189



Page 74 of 189



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for School District Property included in the
Head's Pond Stewardship Plan

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department: Community Development
Staff Contact: Leann Fuller, Community Development Clerk

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

A parcel included in the Head's Pond Stewardship Plan belongs to the School District. Their main
concern was being able to still utilize their property as they see fit in the future. This Memorandum of
Understanding alleviates the main concerns that the School District has with their property. Legal
Counsel has reviewed the MOU, amended it to include a couple additional comments from the School
Board and has agreed it is satisfactory.

RECOMMENDATION:

Allow the Conservation Commission to enter into the Memorandum of Understanding with the School
District relative to their parcel included in the Head's Pond Stewardship Plan.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to have the Town, by way of the Conservation Commission, enter into the Memorandum of
Understanding with the School District for the parcel included in the Head's Pond Stewardship Plan.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:

Concur. Appears to address the concerns of the school district on possible future use of the parcel
for a school.

ATTACHMENTS:
REVISED Heads Pond MOU for School Board (mrs rev)

Page 75 of 189



Agenda ltem #15.4.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR
CONSERVATION STEWARDSHIP OF TAX MAP 14, LOT 2

The Hooksett School District and the Hooksett Conservation Commission (HCC) hereby enter into this
Memorandum of Understanding which establishes procedures and guidelines which govern the
management of Heads Pond Conservation Area as authorized by Hooksett Town Council as well as
RSA 36-A: 4.

1. All stewardship activities will be conducted in accordance with the Heads Pond Stewardship
Plan (Plan); this plan was:

« Developed through a public meeting process by the HCC with the assistance of the Community
Development office, environmental consultants and Bear-Paw Regional Greenways staff;

« Reviewed and approved by the HCC prior to adoption by the Town Council; e

Consistent with the Town of Hooksett Master Plan.

2. The HCC may implement recommendations of the Plan on Tax Map 14, Lot 2, including but not
limited to:

« Ecological assessments;
« Property surveys and boundary markings;
« Sign installation indicating trails and/or property uses.

3. The HCC, with School District approval may implement recommendations of the Plan on Tax Map
14, Lot 2, including but not limited to:

« Trail management, including closing and developing trails;
« Forestry management activities.

4. The HCC agrees that trails within Tax Map 14, Lot 2 will be open to the public, and that no usage fee will be
charged.

5. The HCC assumes sole responsibility for the preparation, maintenance and retention of the property
maintenance schedule.

This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective as of March 18, 2021 and shall be in force until
June 30, 2022. It shall by agreement between the School District and the HCC be renewed on an
annual basis; either on these same terms or on such other terms as may be agreed mutually between the
Council and the Commission.

Page 76 of 189



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Made and entered into this date March 16, 2021, by

William Rearick, Superintendent of Schools/Cindy Robertson, Town of Hooksett Conservation Chair

APPENDIX

RSA re: Powers

CHAPTER 36-A
CONSERVATION COMMISSIONS

Section 36-A:1

36-A:1 Method of Adoption. — Any city by vote of its city council, and any town at any duly
warned meeting, may adopt the provisions of this chapter.
Source. 1963, 168:1, eff. Aug. 20, 1963. 2008, 317:1, eff. Jan. 1, 2009

Section 36-A: 4

36-A: 4 Powers. — Said commission may receive gifts of money and property, both real and personal,
in the name of the city or town, subject to the approval of the local governing body, such gifts to be
managed and controlled by the commission for the purposes of this section. Said commission may
acquire in the name of the town or city, subject to the approval of the local governing body, by gift,
purchase, grant, bequest, devise, lease, or otherwise, the fee in such land or water rights, or any lesser
interest, development right, easement, covenant, or other contractual right including conveyances with
conditions, limitations or reversions, as may be necessary to acquire, maintain, improve, protect, or
limit the future use of or otherwise conserve and properly utilize open spaces and other land and water
areas within their city or town, and shall manage and control the same, but the city or town or
commission shall not have the right to condemn property for these purposes. Source. 1963, 168:1.
1973, 550:3. 1995, 138:2, eff. July 23, 1995. 2008, 317:2, eff. Jan. 1, 2009. 2012, 202:2, eff. June 13,
2012. 2013, 270:4, eff. Sept. 22, 2013.

Page 77 of 189



Page 78 of 189



Agenda Item #15.5.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Refunding Resolution and Certificate for the 2019 Rte. 3A Infrastructure Debt
Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department:  Finance
Staff Contact: Christine Soucie, Finance Director

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Upon the request of the Tax Increment Financing(TIF) Advisory Committee, | was asked to look into
refinancing the 2019 approved note for $2.5 million for the Rte. 3A Infrastructure. The current note
which is paid entirely from the TIF district is with TD Bank and the interest rate is 2.55%. After
researching all financing options, the NH Bond Bank was the only option available to the Town. The
NH Bond Bank anticipated a rate of 1.05% at their May sale. This rate is subject to change due to
market conditions.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Estimated saving is $162,000 over eight years. This saving then can be used to do other necessary
upgrades in the district.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopted FY 21-01 Refunding Resolution and Certificate for the Rte. 3A Infrastructure Note.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Motion to waive Town Council's rules of procedure and vote the same night as public hearing.

Motion to adopted FY 21-01 Refunding Resolution and Certificate for the Rte. 3A Infrastructure Note.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

Page 79 of 189



Page 80 of 189



Agenda Item #15.6.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Town Vehicles and Use of Personal Vehicles Policy
Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department:  Finance
Staff Contact: Christine Soucie, Finance Director

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Back in March 2010 then Administrator Carol Granfield established a Town Vehicle and Use of
Private Vehicle Administrative Regulation. The regulation was updated once in 2012 by Dr. Shankle.

Attached is the updated regulation, that explain the policy around using a Town Vehicle, the
reimbursement process, if an employee was to use there own vehicle for town business, authorization
to allow the Town Administrator to assign a Town vehicle for the purpose of commuting and tax
liability.

Currently there is no "Pool Car" but it remains in the policy incase one becomes available.
The following positions have been authorized to use a Town Vehicle for commuting:
Town Administrator

Code Enforcement Officer

Fire Chief

Assistant Fire Chief

Police Chief

DPW Director

Highway Crew Chief

Master Mechanic

RECOMMENDATION:
Review and adopted the policy and add it to the Administrative Code.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to adopted the "Town Vehicles and Use of Personal Vehicle Policy" as amended and added it
to the Administrative Code.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:
Exhibit | - Town Vehicles and use of Personal Vehicles

Page 81 of 189



Agenda Item #15.6.

Page 82 of 189



Agenda Item #15.6.

Exhibit I

Town of Hooksett
35 Main Street
Hooksett, NH 03106

TOWN VEHICLES AND USE OF PERSONAL VEHICLES
POLICY

Section 1. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to set forth the guidelines for reimbursement or
compensation for employees use of personal vehicles; the guidelines under which Town
vehicles will be authorized to Town Personnel; and the guidelines under which Town
vehicles may be used.

Section 2. Policy

2.1 In order to be eligible to drive a Town vehicle a driver must possess a valid New
Hampshire driver’s license and appropriate class for the vehicle being operated.

2.2 Passengers in a Town vehicle are limited to persons being transported in connection
with Town business (committee members, consultants, contractors, etc.) or those
participating in Town programs (ride-alongs, observer programs etc.). This policy does
not permit the transport of individuals to non-work related destinations or for non-work
purposes. This included family members.

2.3 Seatbelts shall be worn while operating or riding in Town vehicles. The driver of the
vehicle shall be responsible for passenger adherence to this rule.

2.4 Use of a Town vehicle for commuting purposes is allowable only with approval of
the Town Administrator.

2.5 All Town owned vehicles shall have affixed the-standard—the words “Town of
Hooksett” or a Town seal, other than unmarked police vehicles. Fhe-Director-ofPublie

e O —O e o

Section 3. Vehiele-Assighment-Criteria Expense Reimbursement

3.1 Whenever practical, departments shall pool Town vehicles to increase utilization of
vehicles and promote flexibility of driver transportation. If an employee is not assigned a
Town vehicle and is required to attend to Town business, they shall make arrangements
with the Administration Department of Public Works to sign out the “Pool Car”. If the

o1-

Page 83 of 189



Agenda Item #15.6.

“Pool Car” is not available then an employee may use their personal vehicle as long as
they have met the eligibility requirements and have written verification the “Pool Car” is
not available. Mileage reimbursement is a per mile rate set forth by the IRS. Mileage
will not be paid to an employee to commute home and return to attend a meeting.

3.2 Employees with the permission of their Department Head, or Department Heads with
the Permission of the Town Administrator may be reimbursed for mileage when it is not
practical to utilize the “Pool Car”.

3.3 An employee shall be reimbursed for reasonable, legitimate and documented parking
and toll expenses incurred while conducting Town business. Employee Reimbursement
Form, with receipts, must be submitted in order for an employee to be reimbursed for
such expenses.

Section 4. Retention of Municipally Owned Vehicles

4.1 When not being used on Town business, all Town vehicles shall be kept on Town
property except as herein provided. Retention of a Town vehicle may be authorized by
the Town Administration when the interests of the Town are best served by permitting
the retention. “Retention” shall constitute the ongoing retention of a Town vehicle by a
Town employee at his or her place of residence. A list of those authorized shall be
provided by the Town Administration to the Finance Department.

4.2 An employee is authorized to retain a Town vehicle if his or her positions require
them to be on standby duty outside of the scheduled working hours and require
immediate attention during that time frame.

4.3 Personal travel outside the Town of Hooksett is prohibited, except for commuting to
and from his or her place of residence.

Section 5. Tax Liability

5.1 Employee’s authorized to use a Town vehicle for commuting shall be calculated
based on IRS guidelines, and adjusted for in the employee’s paycheck. The Finance
Department will notify departments annually of requirements and changes.

Page 84 of 189



Agenda Item #15.7.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Pawnbroker and Secondhand Dealers Ordinance 2014-1 & Application - Proposed
Amendments

Meeting: Town Council - 14 Apr 2021

Department:  Town Clerk's Office
Staff Contact: Todd Rainier, Town Clerk

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Currently, The Town of Hooksett has a Pawnbroker and Secondhand Dealer Ordinance and application that have been in
effect since 2014. Proposed changes are to bring application and ordinance language in line with each other, clean up
redundancies, and improve flow of text.

Per Section 3.6 Ordinance of the Town Charter:

“A. An ordinance may be introduced by any member at any regular or special meeting of the Council. Upon
introduction of any ordinance, the Town Clerk or designee shall distribute a copy to each Councilor and to the
Town Administrator, file a reasonable number of copies in the office of the Town Clerk, post a copy in such other
public places as the Council may designate, and provide for publication in a local newspaper or newspapers of
their choice seven (7) days prior to the public hearing on said ordinance. The full text of the proposed
amendment or ordinance need not be included in the notice if an adequate statement describing the proposal
and designating the place where the proposal is on file for public inspection is stated in the notice. Final action
on said ordinance shall not be taken by the Town Council until at least seven (7) days after said public hearing.

B. Every proposed ordinance of the Council shall be introduced in writing and in the form required for final
adoption. No ordinance shall contain more than one subject, which shall be clearly expressed in its title. Each
ordinance shall be identified by a number and a short title. The enacting clause shall be "The Town of Hooksett
ordains ...". Any ordinance which repeals or amends an existing ordinance shall set out in full the ordinance,
sections or subsections to be repealed or amended, and shall indicate matter to be omitted by enclosing it in
brackets or by strikeout type, and shall indicate new matter by underscoring or by italics.”

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
None

RECOMMENDATION:
To schedule a Public Hear